INVITATION FOR BID No. 25-R086424DJ GENERATOR AND PUMP PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR MARCH 4, 2025

Manatee County BCC
Procurement Division
1112 Manatee Avenue, West, 7th Floor, Suite 705
Bradenton, FL 34205
purchasing@mymanatee.org



ADVERTISEMENT INVITATION FOR BID No. 25-R086424DJ GENERATOR AND PUMP PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR

Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida (hereinafter referred to as County), will receive sealed bids from individuals, corporations, partnerships, and other legal entities authorized to do business in the State of Florida, to provide Generator and Pump Preventative Maintenance and Repair, as specified in this Invitation for Bid (IFB).

DATE, TIME AND PLACE DUE:

The Due Date and Time for submission of Bids in response to this IFB **is April 16, 2025, at 11:00 AM ET.** Bids must be delivered to the following location: Manatee County Administration Building, 1112 Manatee Ave. West, 7th Floor, Suite 705, Bradenton, FL 34205 prior to the Due Date and Time. Bids will be opened immediately following the Due Date and Time at the Manatee County Administration Building, 7th Floor, Suite 705, and the Bidder's name and total bid amount will be read aloud. Bidders or their representatives may attend the Bid opening.

No review or analysis of the Bids will be conducted at the Bid Opening.

SOLICITATION INFORMATION CONFERENCE:

No Solicitation Information Conference will be conducted for this solicitation.

DEADLINE FOR QUESTIONS AND CLARIFICATION REQUESTS:

The deadline to submit all questions, inquiries, or requests concerning interpretation, clarification or additional information pertaining to this Invitation for Bid to the Manatee County Procurement Division is **March 21, 2025**. Questions and inquiries should be submitted via email to the Designated Procurement Contact shown below.

Important: A prohibition of lobbying is in place. Review Section A.15 carefully to avoid violation and possible sanctions.

DESIGNATED PROCUREMENT CONTACT: Dave Janney, Procurement Agent III

(941) 749-3056, Fax (941) 749-3034 Email: Dave.Janney@mymanatee.org Manatee County Financial Management Department Procurement Division

AUTHORIZED FOR RELEASE:

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION A Instructions to Bidders

SECTION B Terms and Conditions

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A	Acknowledgement of Addenda
Attachment B	Bidder's Signature Form
Attachment C	Public Contracting and Environmental Crimes Certification
Attachment D	Insurance Requirements and Insurance Statement
Attachment E	Conflict of Interest Affidavit
Attachment F	Drug Free Workplace Certification
Attachment G	Scrutinized Company Certification (Required if over \$1M)
Attachment H	Anti-Human Trafficking Affidavit
Attachment I	Bid Pricing Form

EXHIBITS

Exhibit 1	Scope of Services
Exhibit 2	Minimum Qualifications
Exhibit 3	Equipment and Location List
Exhibit 4	Sample Agreement

SECTION A, INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS, IFB No. 25-R086424DJ

To receive consideration, entities who submit a response to this Invitation for Bid (Bidders) must meet the minimum qualification requirements and comply with the following instructions. Bid responses (Bids) will be accepted from single business entities, joint ventures, partnerships or corporations.

A.01 BID DUE DATE

The Due Date and Time for submission of Bids in response to this Invitation for Bid (IFB) is April 16, 2025, at 11:00 AM. Bids must be delivered to the following location: Manatee County Administration Building, 1112 Manatee Avenue West, 7th Floor, Suite 705, Bradenton, FL 34205 and time stamped by a Procurement representative prior to the Due Date and Time.

Bids received after the Due Date and Time will not be considered. It will be the sole responsibility of the Bidder to deliver its bid to the Manatee County Procurement Division for receipt on or before the Due Date and Time. If a bid is sent by U.S. Mail, courier or other delivery services, the Bidder will be responsible for its timely delivery to the Procurement Division. Bids delayed in delivery will not be considered, will not be opened at the public opening, and arrangements will be made for their return at the Bidder's request and expense.

A.02 PUBLIC OPENING OF BIDS

Bids will be opened immediately following the Due Date and Time at the Manatee County Administration Building, 7th Floor, Suite 705, in the presence of County officials. Bidders or their representatives may attend the Bid opening.

Manatee County will make public at the opening the names of the business entities which submitted a Bid and the total bid price submitted. No review or analysis of the Bids will be conducted at the Bid Opening.

A.03 SUBMISSION OF BIDS

The contents of the Bid sealed package must include:

- One (1) bound original clearly identifying Bidder and marked "ORIGINAL".
- One (1) electronic format copy clearly identifying Bidder with all required information and identical to the original.

Electronic format copy should be submitted on a Universal Serial Bus (USB) portable flash memory drive or compact disc (CD) in MicroSoft Office[®] or Adobe Acrobat[®] portable document format (PDF) in one continuous file. Do not password protect or otherwise encrypt electronic Bid copies. Electronic copies must be searchable and contain an identical Bid to the original.

Submit the Bid package in a sealed container with the following information clearly marked on the outside of the package: IFB No. 25-R086424DJ, Generator and Pump Preventative Maintenance and Repair, Bidder's name, and Bidder's address.

Bids must be delivered to the Manatee County Procurement Division prior to the Due Date and Time at the following address:

Manatee County Procurement Division 1112 Manatee Avenue West, 7th Floor, Suite 705 Bradenton, FL 34205

A.04 BID FORMS

Bids must include the forms provided in this IFB. If needed, additional pages may be attached to a form. Bidders must fully complete and execute all Bid Forms. Bid Forms must be executed by an authorized official of the company who has the legal authority to bind the company.

A.05 ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

Bidder shall acknowledge in its Bid if Bidder has an environmental sustainability initiative. In addition, Bidder shall submit with its Bid a brief summary of its environmental sustainability initiative. This information will be used as a determining factor in the award decision when all other factors, including local preference, are otherwise equal.

A.06 STANDARDS FOR MATHEMATICAL ERRORS

- 1. Bid pricing forms without imbedded mathematical formulas: In the event of multiplication/extension error(s), the unit price shall prevail. In the event of addition error(s) the extension totals will prevail. In the event the dollar amount for contract contingency is omitted, it will be added to the total price of the Bid.
- 2. Bid pricing forms with imbedded mathematical formulas: Interactive bid pricing forms that contain mathematical formulas may be provided to automate lengthy and complex bid forms. In the event bid pricing forms with imbedded formulas are used and a multiplication/extension error(s) is discovered in the formula, the unit price entered by the Bidder shall prevail.
- 3. Bidder shall assume the responsibility and accuracy of the information input in the bid pricing form and therefore shall verify that the calculations are correct before submitting its Bid.
- 4. Regardless of the type of bid pricing form used, all Bids shall be reviewed mathematically by the County using these standards.

A.07 DISTRIBUTION OF SOLICITATION DOCUMENTS

All documents issued pursuant to this IFB are distributed electronically and available for download at no charge at www.mymanatee.org > Business, Bids and Proposals. This link is located at the top of the County website home page under the business tab. Documents may be viewed and downloaded for printing using Adobe Reader® software.

At its sole discretion, the County may utilize a third-party provider, to distribute Bids. Participation in the third-party provider's system is not a requirement for doing business with the County.

Additionally, the IFB and all related documents are available for public inspection at the Manatee County Procurement Division, 1112 Manatee Avenue West, 7th Floor, Suite 705, Bradenton, FL 34205. Call (941) 749-3014 to schedule an appointment. Documents are available between the hours of 8:30 A.M. and 4:30 P.M., Monday through Friday, with the exception of County holidays.

A.08 ADDENDA

Any interpretations, corrections or changes to this IFB will be made by addendum. Addenda will be posted on the Procurement Division's web page of the County website at http://www.mymanatee.org > Business > Bids and Proposals, and any third-party provider's website.

All addenda are a part of the IFB and each Bidder will be bound by such addenda. It is the responsibility of each Bidder to read and comprehend all addenda issued. Failure of any Bidder to acknowledge an issued addendum in its Bid will not relieve the Bidder from any obligation contained therein.

A.09 BID EXPENSES

All costs incurred by Bidder in responding to this IFB will be the sole responsibility of the Bidder.

A.10 OUESTION AND CLARIFICATION PERIOD

Each Bidder shall examine all terms, conditions and requirements in the IFB documents and will judge all matters relating to the adequacy and accuracy of such documents. Any questions or request for changes or interpretations, clarification or additional information pertaining to this IFB shall be made in writing via email to the Manatee County Procurement Division to the Designated Procurement Contact or to purchasing@mymanatee.org prior to the Deadline for Questions and Clarifications. Bidder shall furnish any data or information it deems necessary for the County to evaluate requests to modify the terms, conditions or requirements of this IFB. Any changes or modifications to the terms, conditions and requirements of this IFB will be at the sole discretion of the County. All questions received and responses given will be provided to potential Bidders via an addendum to this IFB.

Manatee County will not be responsible for oral interpretations given including from County staff, representative, or others. The issuance of a written addendum by the Procurement Division is the only official method whereby interpretation, clarification, modifications, or additional information will be given.

A.11 FALSE OR MISLEADING STATEMENTS

Bids which contain false or misleading statements, or which provide references which do not support an attribute or condition claimed by the Bidder, may be rejected. If, in the opinion of the County, such information was intended to mislead the County in its evaluation of the Bid,

and the attribute, condition or capability is a requirement of this IFB. Such Bidder will be disqualified from consideration for this IFB and may be disqualified from submitting a response on future solicitation opportunities with the County.

A.12 UNBALANCED BIDDING

County recognizes that large and/or complex projects will often result in a variety of methods, sources, and prices. However, where in the opinion of the County such variation does not appear to be justified given bid requirements and industry and market conditions, the Bid will be presumed to be unbalanced. Examples of unbalanced Bids will include:

- 1. Bids showing omissions, alterations of form, additions not specified, or required conditional or unauthorized alternate bids.
- 2. Bids quoting prices that substantially deviate, either higher or lower, from those included in the Bids of competitive Bidders for the same line item unit costs.
- 3. Bids where the unit costs offered are in excess of, or below reasonable cost analysis values.

In the event County determines that a Bid is presumed unbalanced, it will request the opportunity to and reserves the right to, review all source quotes, bids, price lists, letters of intent, and other supporting documentation which the Bidder obtained and upon which the Bidder relied upon to develop its Bid. County reserves the right to deem any presumptive unbalanced Bid where the Bidder is unable to demonstrate the validity and/or necessity of the unbalanced unit costs as non-responsive.

A.13 WITHDRAWAL OR REVISION OF BIDS

Bidders may withdraw Bids under the following circumstances:

- 1. If Bidder discovers a mistake(s) prior to the Due Date and Time. Bidder may withdraw its Bid by submitting a written notice to the Procurement Division. The notice must be received in the Procurement Division prior to the Due Date and Time for receiving Bids. A copy of the request shall be retained and the unopened Bid returned to the Bidder; or
- 2. After the Bids are opened but before a contract is signed, Bidder alleges a material mistake of fact if:
 - a. The mistake is clearly evident in the solicitation document; or
 - b. Bidder submits evidence which clearly and convincingly demonstrates that a mistake was made in the Bid. Request to withdraw a Bid must be in writing and approved by the Purchasing Official.

A.14 JOINT VENTURES

Bidders intending to submit a bid as a joint venture with another entity are required to have filed proper documents with the Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulation and all other State or local licensing agencies as required by Florida Statute Section 489.119, prior to the Due Date and Time.

A.15 LOBBYING

After the issuance of any solicitation, no prospective Bidders, or their agents, representatives or persons acting at the request of such Bidder, shall contact, communicate with, or discuss any matter relating in any way to the solicitation with any County officers, agents or employees, other than the Purchasing Official or designee, unless otherwise directed by the Procurement Official or designee.

This prohibition includes copying such persons on written communications (including email correspondence) but does not apply to presentations made to evaluation committees or at a County Commission meeting where the Commission is considering approval of a proposed contract. This requirement ends upon final execution of the contract or at the time the solicitation is cancelled. Violators of this prohibition will be subject to sanctions as provided in the Manatee County Code of Ordinances Section 2-26-31 and 2-26-32. Sanctions may include (a) written warning; (b) termination of contracts; and (c) debarment or suspension.

A.16 IRREVOCABLE OFFER

Any Bid may be withdrawn up until the Due Date and Time. Any Bid not so withdrawn shall, upon opening, constitute an irrevocable offer for a period of one hundred twenty (120) days to provide the goods or services set forth in this IFB or until one or more of the Bids have been duly accepted by County, whichever occurs first.

A.17 ERRORS OR OMISSIONS

Once a Bid is opened, the County will not accept any request by Bidder to correct errors or omissions in the Bid other than as identified in paragraph A.13.

A.18 DETERMINATION OF RESPONSIBLENESS AND RESPONSIVENESS

The County will conduct a due diligence review of all Bids received to determine if the Bidder is responsible and responsive.

To be responsive a Bidder must submit a Bid that conforms in all material respects to the requirements of this IFB and contains all the information, fully completed attachments and forms, and other documentation required. Bids that are deemed non-responsive will not be considered.

To be responsible, a Bidder must meet the minimum qualification requirements and have the capability to perform the Scope of Services contained in this IFB. Bids submitted by Bidders that are deemed non-responsible will not be considered.

A.19 SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES FORM

Pursuant to Florida Statute Section 287.135, as of July 1, 2012, a company that, at the time of submitting a response for a new contract or renewal of an existing contract, is on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, created pursuant to Florida Statute Section 215.473, is ineligible for, and may not submit a response for or enter into or renew a contract with an agency or local governmental entity for goods or services of \$1 million or

more. To the extent certification is required, it shall be provided on the enclosed Attachment, *Vendor Certification Regarding Scrutinized Companies Lists*.

A.20 COLLUSION

Bidder certifies that its Bid is made without prior understanding, agreement, or connection with any other corporation, firm or person submitting a Bid for the same materials, services, supplies, or equipment and is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud.

Any such violation may result in contract cancellation, return of materials or discontinuation of services and the possible removal of Bidder from participation in future County solicitations for a specified period.

The County reserves the right to disqualify a Bidder during any phase of the solicitation process and terminate for cause any resulting contract upon evidence of collusion with intent to defraud on the part of the Bidder.

A.21 PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

In accordance with Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, a person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases or real property to a public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017 for Category Two for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

In addition, Manatee County Code of Laws Chapter 2-26 Article V prohibits the award of County contracts to any person or entity who/which has, within the past five years, been convicted of, or admitted to in court or sworn to under oath, a public entity crime or of any environmental law that, in the reasonable opinion of the Purchasing Official, establishes reasonable grounds to believe the person or business entity will not conduct business in a reasonable manner.

A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime, as that term is defined in Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, may not submit a bid to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit a bid with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work; may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform Work as a contractor, supplier, Subcontractor, or consultant under an agreement with any public entity; and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of thirty-six (36) months following the date of being placed on the convicted list.

In addition, the Manatee County Code of Laws prohibits the award of any bid to any person or entity who/which has, within the past five (5) years, been convicted of, or admitted to in

court or sworn to under oath, a public entity crime or of any environmental law that, in the reasonable opinion of the Purchasing Official, establishes reasonable grounds to believe the person or business entity will not conduct business in a responsible matter.

To ensure compliance with the foregoing, the Code requires all persons or entities desiring to do business with County to execute and file with the Purchasing Official an affidavit, executed under the pain and penalties of perjury, confirming that person, entity and any person(s) affiliated with the entity, does not have such a record and is therefore eligible to seek and be awarded business with County. In the case of a business entity other than a partnership or a corporation, such affidavit shall be executed by an authorized agent of the entity. In the case of a partnership, such affidavit shall be executed by the general partner(s). A Public Contracting and Environmental Crimes Certification form is attached herein for this purpose.

A.22 DISCOUNTS AND PRICING

All discounts must be incorporated in the prices contained in the bid and not shown separately. Unless otherwise specified in this IFB, pricing must be all inclusive, including delivery costs. The prices indicated on the Pricing Form shall be the prices used in determining award. When there is a discrepancy between the unit prices and any extended prices, the unit prices shall prevail.

A.23 PROTEST

Any actual bidder, proposer, or contractor who is aggrieved in connection with the notice of intent to award of a contract with a value greater than \$250,000 where such grievance is asserted to be the result of a violation of the requirements of the Manatee County Procurement Code or any applicable provision of law by the officers, agents, or employees of the County, may file a protest to the Purchasing Official.

Protest must be in writing and delivered via email at purchasing@mymanatee.org or by hand delivery to the Procurement Division at 1112 Manatee Avenue West, 7th Floor, Suite 705, Bradenton, FL 34205 by 5:00 p.m. on the fifth business day following the date of posting of the Notice of Intent to Award on the County website. There is no stay of the procurement process during a protest. The Purchasing Official shall have the authority to settle and resolve a protest concerning the intended award of a contract.

For additional information regarding the County protest process, visit the Procurement Division webpage on the County website.

A.24 LICENSES AND PERMITS

The successful Bidder shall be solely responsible for obtaining all necessary license and permit fees, including, but not limited to, all license fees, permit fees, impact fees, or inspection fees, and responsible for the costs of such fees. Successful Bidder is solely responsible for ensuring all work complies with all Federal, State, local, and Manatee County ordinances, orders, codes, laws, rules, regulations, directives, and guidelines.

A.25 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Manatee County Code of Laws prohibits contracts where conflicts are found to exist. Bidder shall not be currently engaged in, or if awarded, will not become engaged in any obligations, undertakings or contracts that will require Bidder to maintain an adversarial role against the County or that will impair or influence the advice or recommendations it provides to the County.

A.26 BASIS OF AWARD

Award(s) will be made to the responsive, responsible Bidder having the lowest Bid. The County, at its sole discretion, may make multiple awards based upon groups, price, or other such criteria. Whenever the lowest Bid is submitted by two or more Bidders and are equal with respect to price, quality, and/or service, the Bid received from a local business shall be given preference in the award. Whenever two or more lowest Bids are received from local businesses and are equal with respect to price, quality, and/or service, the award shall be determined by a chance drawing to be conducted by the Purchasing Official in a publicly noticed meeting.

Local business is defined as a business legally authorized to engage in the sale of goods and/or services which, for at least six months prior to the announcement of the solicitation for Bids, has maintained a physical place of business in Manatee, Desoto, Hardee, Hillsborough, Pinellas, or Sarasota County, and which has had at least one full-time employee at that location during the qualifying period.

A.27 ACCESSIBILITY

The County is committed to making its documents and information technologies accessible to individuals with disabilities by meeting the requirements of Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act and best practices (W3C WCAG 2). For assistance with accessibility regarding this solicitation, contact the Manatee County Procurement Division via email at purchasing@mymanatee.org or by phone at 941-748-4501, X3014.

Successful Bidder shall ensure all its electronic information, documents, applications, reports, and deliverables required under the Agreement are in a format that meets the requirements of Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act and best practices (W3C WCAG 2).

Where not fully compliant with these requirements and best practices, Successful Bidder shall provide clear points of contact for each document and information technology to direct users in how to obtain alternate formats. Further, successful Bidder shall develop accommodation strategies for those non-compliant resources and implement strategies to resolve the discrepancies.

A.28 SOLICITATION SCHEDULE

The following schedule has been established for this Solicitation process. Refer to the County's website (www.mymanatee.org > Business > Bids & Proposals) for meeting locations and updated information pertaining to any revisions to this schedule.

Scheduled Item Scheduled Date

No Information Conference Scheduled

Question and Clarification Deadline Bid Response Due Date and Time Projected Award March 21, 2025 April 16, 2025 @ 11:00 AM June 2025

END OF SECTION A

SECTION B, TERMS AND CONDITIONS IFB No. 25-R086424DJ

B.01 AGREEMENT

The agreement resulting from the acceptance of a bid shall be in the form of a contract and/or a purchase order. This agreement shall be for two (2) years from date of award with (3) one-year renewal options.

B.02 NON-EXCLUSIVE

Unless otherwise stated in this IFB, successful Bidder understands and agrees that any resulting contractual relationship is non-exclusive, and the County reserves the right to contract with more than one Bidder or seek similar or identical goods and services elsewhere if deemed in the best interest of the County.

B.03 CONFIDENTIALITY OF SECURITY RELATED RECORDS

- a. Pursuant to Florida Statutes § 119.071(3), the following records (hereinafter referred to collectively as "the Confidential Security Records") are confidential and exempt from the disclosure requirements of Florida Statutes § 119.07(1):
 - 1. A Security System Plan or portion thereof for any property owned by or leased to County or any privately owned or leased property held by County.
 - 2. Building plans, blueprints, schematic drawings, and diagrams, including draft, preliminary, and final formats, which depict the internal layout and structural elements of a building, arena, stadium, water treatment facility, or other structure owned or operated by County.
 - 3. Building plans, blueprints, schematic drawings, and diagrams, including draft, preliminary, and final formats, which depict the internal layout or structural elements of an attractions and recreation facility, entertainment or resort complex, industrial complex, retail and service development, office development, or hotel or motel development in the possession of, submitted to County.
- b. Successful Bidder agrees that, as provided by Florida Statute, it shall not, as a result of a public records request, or for other reason disclose the contents of, or release or provide copies of the Confidential Security Records to any other party absent the express written authorization of County's Property Management Director or to comply with a court order requiring such release or disclosure. To the extent Successful Bidder receives a request for such records, it shall immediately contact the County's designated Contract administrator who shall coordinate County's response to the request.

B.04 PURCHASING COOPERATIVE

It is the intent of this IFB to include requirements and to obtain bids on behalf of Manatee County. Further it authorizes entities belonging to the Sarasota Bay Area Chapter of NIGP to obtain purchases utilizing the terms, conditions and pricing of this IFB. This opportunity is also made available to all public agencies, pursuant to their own governing laws, and subject to the agreement of the supplier. Manatee County will not be financially responsible for the purchases of other entities utilizing this IFB and any resulting contract or purchase order.

B.05 LOCAL PREFERENCE

Local business is defined as a business legally authorized to engage in the sale of the goods and/or services, and which certifies within its Bid that for at least six (6) full months prior to the advertisement of this IFB it has maintained a physical place of business in Manatee, Desoto, Hardee, Hillsborough, Pinellas or Sarasota County with at least one full-time employee at that location. Local preference shall not apply to the following categories of agreements:

- 1. Purchases or agreements which are funded, in whole or in part, by a governmental or other funding entity, where the terms and conditions governing the funds prohibit the preference.
- 2. Any bid announcement which specifically provides that local preference, as set forth in this section, is suspended due to the unique nature of the goods or services sought, the existence of an emergency as found by either the County Commission or County Administrator, or where such suspension is, in the opinion of the County Attorney, required by law.
- 3. For a competitive solicitation for construction services in which fifty percent (50%) or more of the cost will be paid from state-appropriated funds which have been appropriated at the time of the competitive solicitation.

B.06 SUPPLIER REGISTRATION

Registering your business will provide Manatee County a sourcing opportunity to identify suppliers of needed goods and services and identify local businesses. To register as a supplier with the County go to www.mymanatee.org/vendor. For assistance with supplier registration, call the Procurement Division main number at (941) 749-3014. Office hours are Monday – Friday, 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M., excluding County holidays.

B.07 RESERVED RIGHTS

County reserves the right to accept or reject any and/or all bids, to waive irregularities and minor technicalities, and to request resubmission. Also, County reserves the right to accept all or any part of the bid and to increase or decrease quantities to meet additional or reduced requirements of County. Any sole response received by the first submission date may or may not be rejected by County depending on available competition and current needs of County. For all items combined, the bid of the lowest, responsive, responsible bidder will be accepted, unless all bids are rejected.

The lowest, responsible bidder shall mean that Bidder who makes the lowest Bid to sell goods and/or services of a quality which meets or exceeds the quality of goods and/or services set forth in the IFB documents or otherwise required by County.

To be responsive, a Bidder shall submit a Bid which conforms in all material respects to the requirements set forth in the IFB.

To be a responsible bidder, the bidder shall have the capability in all respects to perform fully the bid requirements, and the tenacity, perseverance, experience, integrity, reliability, capacity, facilities, equipment, and credit which will assure good faith performance.

Also, County reserves the right to make such investigation as it deems necessary to determine the ability of any bidder to furnish the service requested. Information County deems necessary to make this determination shall be provided by the bidder. Such information may include, but shall not be limited to current financial statements, verification of availability of equipment and personnel, and past performance records.

B.08 APPLICABLE LAWS

Bidder must be authorized to transact business in the State of Florida. All applicable laws and regulations of the State of Florida and ordinances and regulations of Manatee County will apply to any resulting contract. This solicitation process will be conducted in accordance with Manatee County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 2-26.

B.09 TAXES

Manatee County is exempt from Federal Excise and State Sales Taxes. (F.E.T. Cert. No. 59-78-0089K; Florida Sales Tax Exempt Cert. No. 85-8012622206C-6). Therefore, the Bidder is prohibited from delineating a separate line item in its bid for any sales or service taxes.

The Successful Bidder will be responsible for the payment of taxes of any kind, including but not limited to sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes payable on account of the work performed and/or materials furnished under the award in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

B.10 CODE OF ETHICS

With respect to this and any bid, if a Bidder violates, directly or indirectly, the ethics provisions of the Manatee County Procurement Code and/or Florida criminal or civil laws related to public procurement, including but not limited to Florida Statutes Chapter 112, Part II, Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees, such Bidder will be ineligible for award to perform the work described in this IFB, and may be disqualified from submitting on any future quote or bid requests to supply goods or services to Manatee County. By submitting a bid, the Bidder represents to County that all statements made and materials submitted are truthful, with no relevant facts withheld.

B.11 AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES

Manatee County does not discriminate upon the basis of any individual's disability status. This non-discrimination policy involves every aspect of County's functions including one's access to participation, employment, or treatment in its programs or activities. Anyone requiring reasonable accommodation for an information conference or bid opening should contact the person named on the cover page of this document at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance of either activity.

B.12 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title 15, Part 8 of the Code of Federal Regulations and the Civil Rights Act of 1992, Manatee County hereby notifies all Bidders that it will affirmatively ensure minority business enterprises are afforded full opportunity to participate in response to this Invitation for Bid and will not be discriminated

against on the grounds of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, handicap, or marital status in consideration of award.

B.13 MINORITY AND/OR DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

The State of Florida Office of Supplier Diversity provides the certification process and maintains the database of certified MBE/DBE firms. Additional information may be obtained at http://www.osd.dms.state.fl.us/iframe.htm or by calling (850) 487-0915.

B.14 QUALITY

Unless otherwise specifically provided in the IFB documents, all goods provided shall be new, the latest make or model, of the best quality, of the highest grade of workmanship, and of the most suitable for the purpose intended.

Unless otherwise specifically provided in the IFB documents, reference to any equipment, material, article or patented process, by trade name, brand name, make or catalog number, shall be regarded as establishing a standard of quality and shall not be construed as limiting competition.

B.15 DELIVERY

Unless otherwise specified, all prices shall include all delivery cost (FOB Destination).

B.16 AUTHORIZED PRODUCT REPRESENTATION

Bidder, by virtue of submitting the name and specifications of a manufacturer's product, will be required to furnish the named manufacturer's product. Failure to do so may, in the County's sole discretion, be deemed a material breach of the resulting agreement and shall constitute grounds for County's immediate termination of the resulting agreement.

B.17 ROYALTIES AND PATENTS

The successful Bidder shall pay all royalties and license fees for equipment or processes in conjunction with the equipment and/or services being furnished. Successful Bidder shall defend all suits or claims for infringement of any patent, trademark or copyright, and shall save County harmless from loss on account thereof, including costs and attorney's fees.

B.18 PUBLIC RECORDS

Upon receipt, all inquiries and responses to inquiries related to this Bid become "Public Records", and shall be subject to public disclosure consistent with Florida Statute, Chapter 119.

Bids become subject to disclosure thirty (30) days after the opening or when notice of intent to award is made, whichever occurs first, as provided by Florida Statutes § 119.071(1)(b).

If County rejects all Bids and concurrently notices its intent to reissue the solicitation, the rejected Bids are exempt from public disclosure until such time the County provides notice of an intended decision concerning the reissued solicitation or until County withdraws the reissued solicitation. A bid is not exempt for longer than twelve (12) months after the initial notice of rejection of all Bids.

Pursuant to Florida Statute 119.0701, to the extent Successful Bidder is performing services on behalf of County, Successful Bidder must:

- 1. Keep and maintain public records required by public agency to perform the service. That information and data it manages as part of the services may be public record in accordance with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes and Manatee County public record policies. Bidder agrees, prior to providing goods/services, it will implement policies and procedures, which are subject to approval by County, to maintain, produce, secure, and retain public records in accordance with applicable laws, regulations, and County policies including but not limited to Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes.
- 2. Upon request from the public agency's custodian of public records, provide the public agency with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Florida Statutes, Chapter 119, or as otherwise provided by law.
- 3. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following completion of the contract if the Successful Bidder does not transfer the records to the public agency.
- 4. Upon completion of the contract, transfer, at no cost, to the public agency all public records in possession of contractor or keep and maintain public records required by the public agency to perform the service. If the Successful Bidder transfers all public records to County upon completion of the contract, the Successful Bidder shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If the Successful Bidder keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the contract, the Successful Bidder shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to County, upon request from County's custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of County.

IF THE SUCCESSFUL BIDDER HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO ITS DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO ANY RESULTING CONTRACT, CONTACT COUNTY'S CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT:

PHONE: (941) 742-5845,

EMAIL: LACY.PRITCHARD@MYMANATEE.ORG,

MAIL: ATTN: RECORDS MANAGER, 1112 MANATEE AVENUE

WEST, BRADENTON, FL 34205.

B.19 TRADE SECRETS

Manatee County is subject to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. Therefore, all documents, materials, and data submitted as part of a Bid in response to a Request for Bid are governed by the disclosure, exemption and confidentiality provisions relating to public records in Florida Statutes.

Except for materials that are 'trade secrets' as defined by Chapter 812, Florida Statutes, ownership of all documents, materials and data submitted as part of a Bid in response to the Request for Bid shall belong exclusively to County.

To the extent that Bidder desires to maintain the confidentiality of materials that constitute trade secrets pursuant to Florida law, trade secret material submitted must be segregated from the portions of the Bid that are not declared as trade secret. In addition, Bidder shall cite, for each trade secret claimed, the Florida Statute number which supports the designation. Further, Bidder shall offer a brief written explanation as to why the cited Statute is applicable to the information claimed as trade secret. Additionally, Bidder shall provide a hard copy of its Bid that redacts all information designated as trade secret.

In conjunction with trade secret designation, Bidder acknowledges and agrees that:

- 1. Trade secret requests made after the opening will not be considered. However, County reserves the right to clarify the Bidders request for trade secret at any time; and
- 2. County and its officials, employees, agents, and representatives are hereby granted full rights to access, view, consider, and discuss the information designated as trade secret throughout the evaluation process and until final execution of any awarded purchase order or contract; and
- 3. That after notice from County that a public records request has been made pursuant to Bidder's bid, the Bidder at its sole expense, shall be responsible for defending its determination that submitted material is a trade secret and is not subject to disclosure. Action by Bidder in response to notice from the County shall be taken immediately, but no later than 10 calendar days from the date of notification or Bidder will be deemed to have waived the trade secret designation of the materials.

Notwithstanding any other provision in this solicitation, designation of the entire bid as 'trade secret', 'proprietary', or 'confidential' is not permitted and may result in a determination that the Bid is non-responsive.

B.20 ePAYABLES

Manatee County Board of County Commissioners and the Manatee County Clerk of the Circuit Court have partnered to offer the ePayables program, which allows payments to be made to vendors via credit cards.

The Clerk of the Circuit Court will issue a unique credit card number to vendor after goods are delivered or services rendered, vendors submit invoices to the remit to address on the purchase order. When payments are authorized, an email notification is sent to the vendor. The email notification includes the invoice number(s), invoice date(s), and amount of

payment. There is no cost for vendors to participate in this program; however, there may be a charge by the company that processes your credit card transactions.

If Bidder is interested in participating in this program, the ePayables Application is available by contacting the Clerk of Court, Accounts Payable Supervisor at (941) 749-1800.

B.21 FUNDING

This IFB is subject to the appropriation of funds in an amount sufficient to allow continuation of the County's performance in accordance with the terms and conditions herein. The County shall provide prompt written notice to the successful Bidder that sufficient funds have not been appropriated to continue its full and faithful performance under the terms of this IFB, and shall, effective thirty (30) days after giving such notice or upon the expiration of the time for which funds were appropriated whichever occurs first, be thereafter released of all further obligations in any way related to this IFB.

B.22 CONDITIONS FOR EMERGENCY EVENTS

A critical challenge in emergency situations is to obtain essential supplies, goods and equipment in the affected areas. It is the County's priority that public property, life, safety, and health are protected during any emergency as declared by the State and/or the County. Therefore, before, during and after a disaster, hurricane, flood, act of terrorism, or other public emergency event, whether natural or man-made, successful Bidder shall make delivery to the County of the goods and services in this IFB its first priority.

Successful Bidder will ensure that contract prices are billed to the County for deliveries as part of an emergency event. Upon award of a contract, successful Bidder shall furnish an email and phone number in which successful Bidder can be contacted twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven days per week for emergency services.

B.23 TERMINATION

The County, at its sole discretion, reserves the right to terminate any contract entered into pursuant to this IFB with or without cause immediately upon providing written notice to the successful Bidder. Upon receipt of such notice, the successful Bidder shall not incur any additional costs under the contract. The County shall be liable only for reasonable costs incurred by the successful Bidder prior to the date of the notice of termination.

The County reserves the right to terminate any contract entered into pursuant to this IFB, in part or in whole, or place the successful Bidder on probation in the event it fails to perform in accordance with the terms and conditions stated herein. Notification will be made by providing written notice of such failure or default and by specifying a reasonable time period within which the successful Bidder must cure any such failure to perform or default. If the successful Bidder fails to cure the default within the time specified, the County may then terminate the subject contract by providing written notice to the successful Bidder. The County further reserves the right to suspend or debar the successful Bidder in accordance with the appropriate County ordinances and/or policies. In the event of termination for default, the County may procure the required goods and/or services from any source and use any method deemed in its best interest.

B.24 PRECEDENCE

Statements contained in the Scope of Service or Bid Summary Sections of this IFB, which vary from the information contained in Sections A and B, shall have precedence.

B.25 E-VERIFY

Prior to the employment of any person under this contract, the Successful Bidder shall utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of (a) all persons employed during the contract term by the Successful Bidder to perform employment duties within Florida and (b) all persons, including subcontractors, assigned by the Successful Bidder to perform work pursuant to the contract with Manatee County. For more information on this process, please refer to United States Citizenship and Immigration Service site at: http://www.uscis.gov/.

Only those individuals determined eligible to work in the United States shall be employed under this contract. By submission of a bid in response to this IFB, the successful Bidder commits that all employees and subcontractors will undergo e-verification before placement on this contract.

The successful Bidder shall maintain sole responsibility for the actions of its employees and subcontractors. For the life of the contract, all employees and new employees brought in after contract award shall be verified under the same requirement stated above.

B.26 SUBCONTRACTORS

The successful bidder will obtain prior written approval from the County for any subcontractor(s) and the work they will perform. A subcontractor is defined as any entity performing work within the scope of the project who is not an employee of the successful Bidder.

Bidders subcontracting any portion of the work shall include a list of subcontractors along with their bid. The list shall include name and address of subcontractor, type of work to be performed and the percent of the contract amount to be subcontracted.

If County has reasonable objection to any subcontractor, the County may request the successful bidder to submit an acceptable substitute without an increase in contract sum or contract time.

If successful Bidder declines to make any such substitution, the County may award the resulting agreement to the next lowest qualified bidder that proposes to use acceptable subcontractors, who County does not make written objection to. In the event the successful Bidder declines to make any such substitution post award, the County may exercise its right to terminate the agreement.

The successful Bidder shall maintain sole responsibility for the actions of its employees and subcontractors. New employees brought in after contract award shall follow the same requirement stated above for the life of the contract.

B.27 RECOMMENDATION FOR AWARD

Upon successful completion of evaluations, a recommendation for award to the successful Bidder(s) will be presented for approval per County ordinances, policies, and procedures.

END OF SECTION B

ATTACHMENT A, ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF ADDENDA IFB No. 25-R086424DJ

The undersigned acknowledges receipt of the following addenda: Addendum No.:_____ Date Received: _____ Addendum No.:_____ Date Received: _____ Addendum No.: Date Received: Date Received: Addendum No.: Addendum No.:_____ Date Received: _____ Addendum No.: Date Received: _____ Addendum No.:_____ Date Received: Addendum No.:_____ Date Received: Print or type Bidder's information below: Name of Bidder: Telephone Number: Street Address: City, State, Zip: Email Address: Website Address: Signature of Authorized Official: Printed Name, Title, Date:

Bidder must fully execute and return this form with its Bid.

ATTACHMENT B, BID SIGNATURE FORM IFB No. 25-R086424DJ

The undersigned represents that:

Print or type Bidder's information below:

Print Name & Title of Authorized Officer

- (1) By signing the bid, that he/she has the authority and approval of the legal entity purporting to submit the bid and any additional documentation which may be required such as the Joint Venture Agreement or Joint Venture Affidavit, if applicable;
- (2) All facts and responses set forth in the bid are true and correct;
- (3) By submitting a bid and signing below, the Bidder agrees to all terms and conditions in this IFB, which incorporates all addenda, appendices, exhibits, and attachments, in its entirety, and is prepared to sign the Contract as written. The Respondent understands that if it submits exceptions to the Contract in its Response, the Respondent's Response may be determined non-responsive; and
- (4) The Bidder, which includes all companies included in a partnership or joint venture, is not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List.

Name of Bidder

Telephone Number

Street Address

City/State/Zip

Email Address

Web Address

Signature of Authorized Officer

Date

Bidder must fully execute and return this form with its Bid.

ATTACHMENT C, PUBLIC CONTRACTING AND ENVIRONMENTAL CRIMES CERTIFICATION

IFB No. 25-R086424DJ

THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED AND SWORN TO IN THE PRESENCE OF A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS.

This sworn statement is submitted to the Manatee County Board of County Commissioners by [Print individual's name and title] for _____ [Print name of entity submitting sworn statement] whose business address is _____ and (if applicable) its Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) is ______. If the entity has no FEIN, include the Social Security Number of the individual signing this sworn statement: _____ I understand that no person or entity shall be awarded or receive a County agreement for public improvements, procurement of goods or services (including professional services) or a County lease, franchise, concession or management agreement, or shall receive a grant of County monies unless such person or entity has submitted a written certification to County that it has not: (1) been convicted of bribery or attempting to bribe a public officer or employee of Manatee County, the State of Florida, or any other public entity, including, but not limited to the Government of the United States, any state, or any local government authority in the United States, in that officer's or employee's official capacity; or (2) been convicted of an agreement or collusion among bidders or prospective bidders in restraint of freedom of competition, by agreement to bid a fixed price, or otherwise; or (3) been convicted of a violation of an environmental law that, in the sole opinion of County's Purchasing Official, reflects negatively upon the ability of the person or entity to conduct business in a responsible manner; (4) made an admission of guilt of such conduct described in items (1), (2) or (3) above, which is a matter of record, but has not been prosecuted for such conduct, or has made an admission of guilt of such conduct, which is a matter of record, pursuant to formal prosecution. An admission of guilt shall be construed to include a plea of nolo contendere; or (5) where an officer, official, agent or employee of a business entity has been convicted of or has admitted guilt to any of the crimes set forth above on behalf of such an entity and pursuant to the direction or authorization of an official thereof (including the person committing the offense, if he is an official of the business entity), the business shall be chargeable with the conduct herein above set forth. A business entity shall be chargeable with

Manatee County BCC IFB No. 25-R086424DJ 24

the conduct of an affiliated entity, whether wholly owned, partially owned, or one which has common ownership or a common Board of Directors. For purposes of this Form, business entities are affiliated if, directly or indirectly, one business entity controls or has the power to control another business entity, or if an individual or group of individuals controls or has the power to control both entities. Indicia of control shall include, without limitation, interlocking management or ownership, identity of interests among family

members, shared organization of a business entity following the ineligibility of a business entity under this Article, or using substantially the same management, ownership or principles as the ineligible entity.

Any person or entity who claims that this Article is inapplicable to him/her/it because a conviction or judgment has been reversed by a court of competent jurisdiction shall prove the same with documentation satisfactory to County's Purchasing Official. Upon presentation of such satisfactory proof, the person or entity shall be allowed to contract with County.

I UNDERSTAND THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THIS FORM TO THE CONTRACTING OFFICER FOR MANATEE COUNTY IS VALID THROUGH DECEMBER 31 OF THE CALENDAR YEAR IN WHICH IT IS FILED. I ALSO UNDERSTAND THAT ANY CONTRACT OR BUSINESS TRANSACTION SHALL PROVIDE FOR SUSPENSION OF PAYMENTS, OR TERMINATION, OR BOTH, IF THE CONTRACTING OFFICER OR COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR DETERMINES THAT SUCH PERSON OR ENTITY HAS MADE FALSE CERTIFICATION.

[Supplier Signature]		
STATE OF		
COUNTY OF		
Sworn to and subscribed before me this _ day of	, 20 by	
who is personally known	OR Produced	
[Type of identification]		
Notary Public Signature		
My commission expires		
[Print, type or stamp Commissioned name of Notary Public]		

Signatory Requirement - In the case of a business entity other than a partnership or a corporation, this affidavit shall be executed by an authorized agent of the entity. In the case of a partnership, this affidavit shall be executed by the general partner(s). In the case of a corporation, this affidavit shall be executed by the corporate president.

Bidder must fully execute and return this form with its Bid.

ATTACHMENT D, INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

The SUPPLIER will not commence work under the resulting Agreement until all insurance coverages indicated by an "X" herein have been obtained. The SUPPLIER shall obtain and submit to the Procurement Division within ten (10) calendar days from the date of notice of intent to award, at its expense, the following minimum amounts of insurance (inclusive of any amounts provided by an umbrella or excess policy): Work under this Agreement cannot commence until all insurance coverages indicated herein have been obtained on a standard ACORD form (inclusive of any amounts provided by an umbrella or excess policy):

REQUIRED INSURANCES

☒ Automobile Liability Insurance Required Limits

Coverage must be afforded under a per occurrence policy form including coverage for all owned, hired and non-owned vehicles for bodily injury and property damage of not less than:

- \$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit; OR
- \$500,000 Bodily Injury and \$500,000 Property Damage
- \$10,000 Personal Injury Protection (No Fault)
- \$500,000 Hired, Non-Owned Liability
- \$10,000 Medical Payments

This policy shall contain severability of interests' provisions.

◯ Commercial General Liability Insurance Required Limits (per Occurrence form only; claims-made form is not acceptable)

Coverage shall be afforded under a per occurrence policy form, policy shall be endorsed and name 'Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida' as an Additional Insured, and include limits not less than:

- \$1,000,000 Single Limit Per Occurrence
- \$1,000,000 Aggregate
- \$1,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate
- \$1,000,000 Personal and Advertising Injury Liability
- \$50,000 Fire Damage Liability
- \$5,000 Medical Expense, and
- \$1,000,000, Third Party Property Damage
- Project Specific Aggregate (Required on projects valued at over \$10,000,000)

This policy shall contain severability of interests' provisions.

⊠ Employer's Liability Insurance

Coverage limits of not less than:

- \$100,000 Each Accident
- \$100,000 Disease Each Employee
- \$500,000 Disease Policy Limit

◯ Worker's Compensation Insurance
 ☐ US Longshoremen & Harbor Workers Act ☐ Jones Act Coverage
Coverage limits of not less than:
 Statutory workers' compensation coverage shall apply for all employees in compliance with the laws and statutes of the State of Florida and the federal government. If any operations are to be undertaken on or about navigable waters, coverage must be included for the US Longshoremen & Harbor Workers Act and Jones Act.
Should 'leased employees' be retained for any part of the project or service, the employee leasing agency shall provide evidence of Workers' Compensation coverage and Employer's Liability coverage for all personnel on the worksite and in compliance with the above Workers' Compensation requirements. NOTE: Workers' Compensation coverage is a firm requirement. Elective exemptions are considered on a case-by-case basis and are approved in a very limited number of instances.
OTHER INSURANCES Aircraft Liability Insurance Required Limits Coverage shall be afforded under a per occurrence policy form, policy shall be endorsed and name 'Manatee County a political subdivision of the State of Florida' as an Additional Insured, and include limits not less than:
 \$ Each Occurrence Property and Bodily Injury with no less than \$100,000 per passenger each occurrence or a 'smooth' limit. \$ General Aggregate.
☐ Un-Manned Aircraft Liability Insurance (Drone) Coverage shall be afforded under a per occurrence policy form, policy shall be endorsed and name 'Manatee County a political subdivision of the State of Florida' as an Additional Insured, and include limits not less than:
 \$ Each Occurrence Property and Bodily Injury; Coverage shall specifically include operation of Unmanned Aircraft Systems (UAS), including liability and property damage. \$ General Aggregate
Installation Floater Insurance

When the contract or agreement **does not** include construction of, or additions to, above ground building or structures, but does involve the installation of machinery or equipment, Installation Floater Insurance shall be afforded under a per occurrence policy form, policy shall be endorsed and name "Manatee County, a political

• 100% of the completed value of such addition(s), building(s), or structure(s)

subdivision of the State of Florida" as an Additional Insured, and include limits not less than:

Professional Liability and/or Errors and Omissions (E&O) Liability Insurances

Coverage shall be afforded under either an occurrence policy form or a claims-made policy form. If the coverage form is on a claims-made basis, then coverage must be maintained for a minimum of three years from termination of date of the contract. Limits must not be less than:

- \$1,000,000 Bodily Injury and Property Damage Each Occurrence
- \$2,000,000 General Aggregate

☐ Builder's Risk Insurance

When the contract or agreement includes the construction of roadways and/or the addition of a permanent structure or building, including the installation of machinery and/or equipment, Builder's Risk Insurance shall be afforded under a per occurrence policy form, policy shall be endorsed and name "Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida" as an Additional Insured, and include limits not less than:

- An amount equal to 100% of the completed value of the project, or the value of the equipment to be installed
- The policy shall not carry a self-insured retention/deductible greater than \$10,000

Coverage shall be for all risks and include, but not be limited to, storage and transport of materials, equipment, supplies of any kind whatsoever to be used on or incidental to the project, theft coverage, and Waiver of Occupancy Clause Endorsement, where applicable.

☐ Cyber Liability Insurance

Coverage shall comply with Florida Statute 501.171, shall be afforded under a per occurrence policy form, policy shall be endorsed and name 'Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida' as an Additional Insured, and include limits not less than:

- \$ Security Breach Liability
- \$ Security Breach Expense Each Occurrence
- \$ Security Breach Expense Aggregate
- \$ Replacement or Restoration of Electronic Data
- \$ Extortion Threats
- \$ Business Income and Extra Expense
- \$ Public Relations Expense

NOTE: Policy must not carry a self-insured retention/deductible greater than \$25,000.

Hazardous Materials Insurance (As Noted Below)

Hazardous materials include all materials and substances that are currently designated or defined as hazardous by the law or rules of regulation by the State of Florida or federal government.

All coverage shall be afforded under either an occurrence policy form or a claims-made policy form, and the policy shall be endorsed and name 'Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida' as an Additional Insured. If the coverage form is on a claims-made basis, then coverage must be maintained for a minimum of three years from termination of date of the contract. Limits must not be less than:

☐ <i>Pollution Liability</i> Amount equal to the value of the contract, subject to a \$1,000,000 minimum, for Bodily Injury and Property Damage to include sudden and gradual release, each claim and aggregate.
Asbestos Liability (If handling within scope of Contract) Amount equal to the value of the contract, subject to a \$1,000,000 minimum, for Bodily Injury and Property Damage to include sudden and gradual release, each claim and aggregate.
_
☐ <i>Disposal</i> When applicable, SUPPLIER shall designate the disposal site and furnish a Certificate of Insurance from the disposal facility for Environmental Impairment Liability Insurance covering liability.
 Amount equal to the value of the contract, subject to a \$1,000,000 minimum, for Liability for Sudden and Accidental Occurrences, each claim and an aggregate. Amount equal to the value of the contract, subject to a \$1,000,000 minimum, for Liability for Non-Sudden and Accidental Occurrences, each claim and an aggregate.
☐ Hazardous Waste Transportation Insurance SUPPLIER shall designate the hauler and have the hauler furnish a Certificate of Insurance for Automobile Liability insurance with Endorsement MCS-90 for liability arising out of the transportation of hazardous materials. EPA identification number shall be provided.
All coverage shall be afforded under either an occurrence policy form or a claims-made policy form and the policy shall be endorsed and name "Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida" as an Additional Insured. If the coverage form is on a claims-made basis, then coverage must be maintained for a minimum of three years from termination of date of the contract. Limits must not be less than:
• Amount equal to the value of the contract, subject to a \$1,000,000 minimum, per accident.
Liquor Liability Insurance Coverage shall be afforded under a per occurrence policy form, policy shall be endorsed and name "Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida" as an Additional Insured, and include limits not less than:
• \$1,000,000 Each Occurrence and Aggregate
☐ Garage Keeper's Liability Insurance Coverage shall be required if the maintenance, servicing, cleaning or repairing of any County motor vehicles is inherent or implied within the provision of the contract.
Coverage shall be afforded under a per occurrence policy form, policy shall be endorsed and name "Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida" as an Additional Insured, and include limits not less than:
• Property and asset coverage in the full replacement value of the lot or garage.
☐ Bailee's Customer Liability Insurance Coverage shall be required for damage and/or destruction when County property is temporarily under the care or custody of a person or organization, including property that is on, or in transit to and from the person or

organization's premises. Perils covered should include fire, lightning, theft, burglary, robbery, explosion, collision, flood, earthquake and damage or destruction during transportation by a carrier.

Coverage shall be afforded under a per occurrence policy form, policy shall be endorsed and name "Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida" as an Additional Insured, and include limits not less than:

• Property and asset coverage in the full replacement value of the County asset(s) in the SUPPLIER'S care, custody and control.

☐ Hull and Watercraft Liability Insurance

Coverage shall be afforded under a per occurrence policy form, policy shall be endorsed and name "Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida" as an Additional Insured, and include limits not less than:

- \$ Each Occurrence
- \$ General Aggregate
- \$ Fire Damage Liability
- \$10,000 Medical Expense, and
- \$ Third Party Property Damage
- \$ Project Specific Aggregate (Required on projects valued at over \$10,000,000)

☐ Other [Specify]

I. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

THE POLICIES ARE TO CONTAIN, OR BE ENDORSED TO CONTAIN, THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS:

Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages

- a. "Manatee County, a Political Subdivision of the State of Florida," is to be named as an Additional Insured in respect to: Liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the SUPPLIER, his agents, representatives, and employees; products and completed operations of the SUPPLIER; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the SUPPLIER. The coverage shall contain no special limitation(s) on the scope of protection afforded to the COUNTY, its officials, employees or volunteers.
 - In addition to furnishing a Certificate of Insurance, the SUPPLIER shall provide the endorsement that evidences Manatee COUNTY being listed as an Additional Insured. This can be done in one of two ways: (1) an endorsement can be issued that specifically lists "Manatee County, a Political Subdivision of the State of Florida," as Additional Insured; or, (2) an endorsement can be issued that states that all Certificate Holders are Additional Insured with respect to the policy.
- b. The SUPPLIER'S insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to the COUNTY, its officials, employees and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the COUNTY, its officials, employees or volunteers shall be excess of SUPPLIER's insurance and shall be non-contributory.
- c. The insurance policies must be on an occurrence form.

Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability Coverages

The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the COUNTY, its officials, employees and volunteers for losses arising from work performed by the SUPPLIER for the COUNTY.

General Insurance Provisions Applicable to All Policies

- 1. Prior to the execution of contract, or issuance of a Purchase Order, and then annually upon the anniversary date(s) of the insurance policy's renewal date(s) for as long as this contract remains in effect, SUPPLIER shall furnish the COUNTY with a Certificate(s) of Insurance (using an industry accepted certificate form, signed by the Issuer, with applicable endorsements, and containing the solicitation or contract number, and title or description) evidencing the coverage set forth above and naming "Manatee County, a Political Subdivision of the State of Florida" as an Additional Insured on the applicable coverage(s) set forth above.
- 2. If the policy contains an aggregate limit, confirmation is needed in writing (letter, email, etc.) that the aggregate limit has not been eroded to procurement representative when supplying Certificate of Insurance. In addition, when requested in writing from the COUNTY, SUPPLIER will provide the COUNTY with a certified copy of all applicable policies. The address where such certificates and certified policies shall be sent or delivered is as follows:

Manatee County, a Political Subdivision of the State of Florida

Attn: Risk Management Division 1112 Manatee Avenue West, Suite 969 Bradenton, FL 34205

- 3. The project's solicitation number and title shall be listed on each certificate.
- **4.** SUPPLIER shall provide thirty (30) days written notice to the Risk Manager of any cancellation, non-renewal, termination, material change, or reduction in coverage of any insurance policies to procurement representative including solicitation number and title with all notices.

- 5. SUPPLIER agrees that should at any time SUPPLIER fail to meet or maintain the required insurance coverage(s) as set forth herein, the COUNTY may terminate this contract.
- **6.** The SUPPLIER waives all subrogation rights against COUNTY, a Political Subdivision of the State of Florida, for all losses or damages which occur during the contract and for any events occurring during the contract period, whether the suit is brought during the contract period or not.
- 7. The SUPPLIER has sole responsibility for all insurance premiums and policy deductibles.
- 8. It is the SUPPLIER'S responsibility to ensure that his agents, representatives and subcontractors comply with the insurance requirements set forth herein. SUPPLIER shall include his agents, representatives, and subcontractors working on the project or at the worksite as insured under its policies, or SUPPLIER shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each agent, representative, and subcontractor working on the project or at the worksite. All coverages for agents, representatives, and subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements set forth to the procurement representative.
- 9. All required insurance policies must be written with a carrier having a minimum A.M. Best rating of A- FSC VII or better. In addition, the COUNTY has the right to review the SUPPLIER's deductible or self-insured retention and to require that it be reduced or eliminated.
- 10. SUPPLIER understands and agrees that the stipulated limits of coverage listed herein in this insurance section shall not be construed as a limitation of any potential liability to the COUNTY, or to others, and the COUNTY'S failure to request evidence of this insurance coverage shall not be construed as a waiver of SUPPLIER'S obligation to provide and maintain the insurance coverage specified.
- 11. SUPPLIER understands and agrees that the COUNTY does not waive its immunity and nothing herein shall be interpreted as a waiver of the COUNTY'S rights, including the limitation of waiver of immunity, as set forth in Florida Statutes 768.28, or any other statutes, and the COUNTY expressly reserves these rights to the full extent allowed by law.
- **12.** No award shall be made until the Procurement Division has received the Certificate of Insurance in accordance with this section.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]

ATTACHMENT D, SUPPLIER'S INSURANCE STATEMENT IFB No. 25-R086424DJ

THE UNDERSIGNED has read and understands the aforementioned insurance requirements of the Agreement and shall provide the insurance and bonds required by this section within ten (10) days from the date of notice of intent to award.

Date:
Consultant Name:
Authorized Signature:
Printed Name/Title:
nsurance Agency:
Agent Name:
Agent Phone:

Bidder must fully execute and return this form with its Bid.

ATTACHMENT E, CONFLICT OF INTEREST AFFIDAVIT IFB No. 25-R086424DJ

STATE OF
COUNTY OF
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, this day personally appeared [INSERT NAME]
, as [INSERT TITLE] of [INSERT
CONSULTANT NAME], with full authority to bind (hereinafter
"CONSULTANT"), who being first duly sworn, deposes and says that CONSULTANT:
(a) Is not currently engaged and will not become engaged in any obligations, undertakings or contracts that will require CONSULTANT to maintain an adversarial role against the County or that will impair or influence the advice, recommendations or quality of work provided to the County; and
(b) Has provided full disclosure of all potentially conflicting contractual relationships and full disclosure of contractual relationships deemed to raise a question of conflict(s); and
(c) Has provided full disclosure of prior work history and qualifications that may be deemed to raise a possible question of conflict(s).
Affiant makes this Affidavit for the purpose of inducing Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of
Florida, to enter into this Agreement No for
DATED this, 20
CONSULTANT Signature
The foregoing instrument was sworn to and acknowledged before me this day of
, 20, by [NAME]
of [CONSULTANT] He / She is personally
known to me or has produced[TYPE OF
IDENTIFICATION] as identification.
Notary Signature Commission No.

Bidder must fully execute and return this form with its Bid.

ATTACHMENT F, DRUG FREE WORK-PLACE CERTIFICATION IFB No. 25-R086424DJ

This form must be signed and sworn to in the presence of a notary public or other official authorized to administer oaths.

administer oaths.
This sworn statement is submitted to the Manatee County Board of County Commissioners by
[print individual's name and title]
for whose business address is
[print name of entity submitting sworn statement]
and (if applicable) its Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) is: (If the entity has no
FEIN, include the Social Security Number of the individual signing this sworn statement:)
I understand that no person or entity shall be awarded or receive a county contract for public improvements, procurement of goods or services (including professional services) or a county lease, franchise, concession or management agreement, or shall receive a grant of county monies unless such person or entity has submitted a written certification to the County that it will provide a drug free work place by:
(1) providing a written statement to each employee notifying such employee that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance as defined by § 893.02(4), Florida Statutes, as the same may be amended from time to time, in the person's or entity's work place is prohibited specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition. Such written statement shall inform employees about:
(i) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(ii) the person's or entity's policy of maintaining a drug free environment at all its workplaces, including but not limited to all locations where employees perform any task relating to any portion of such contract, business transaction or grant;
(iii) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(iv) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.
(2) Requiring the employee to sign a copy of such written statement to acknowledge his or her receipt of same and advice as to the specifics of such policy. Such person or entity shall retain the statements signed by its employees. Such person or entity shall also post in a prominent place at all of its work places a written statement of its policy containing the foregoing elements (i) through (iv).
(3) Notifying the employee in the statement required by subsection (1) that as a condition of employment the employee will:
(i) abide by the terms of the statement;

Manatee County BCC IFB No. 25-R086424DJ 35

(ii) notify the employer of any criminal drug statute conviction for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) days after such a conviction.

- (4) Notifying the County within ten (10) days after receiving notice under subsection (3) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
- (5) Imposing appropriate personnel action against such employee up to and including termination; or requiring such employee to satisfactorily participate in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency.
- (6) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug free workplace through implementation of sections (1) through (5) stated above.

I UNDERSTAND THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THIS FORM TO THE CONTRACTING OFFICER FOR MANATEE COUNTY IS VALID THROUGH DECEMBER 31 OF THE CALENDAR YEAR IN WHICH IT IS FILED. I ALSO UNDERSTAND THAT ANY CONTRACT OR BUSINESS TRANSACTION SHALL PROVIDE FOR SUSPENSION OF PAYMENTS, OR TERMINATION, OR BOTH, IF THE CONTRACTING OFFICER OR THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR DETERMINES THAT:

- (1) Such person or entity has made false certification.
- (2) Such person or entity violates such certification by failing to carry out the requirements of sections (1), (2), (3), (4), (5), or (6) or subsection 3-101(7)(B); or
- (3) Such a number of employees of such person or entity have been convicted of violations occurring in the work place as to indicate that such person or entity has failed to make a good faith effort to provide a drug free work place as required by subsection 3-101(7)(B).

[Signature of Owner, Partner, President, CEO or other Authorized Official or Agent of Bidder]
STATE OF COUNTY OF
Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of, 20 by who is:
Personally known OR Produced identification [Type of identification]
My commission expires
Notary Public Signature
[Print, type or stamp Commissioned name of Notary Public]

Bidder must fully execute and return this form with its Bid.

ATTACHMENT G, SCRUTINIZED COMPANY CERTIFICATION IFB No. 25-R086424DJ

This certification is required pursuant to Florida State Statute Section 287.135.

As of July 1, 2011, a company that, at the time of bidding or submitting a proposal for a new contract or renewal of an existing contract, is on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List is ineligible for, and may not bid on, submit a proposal for, enter into, or renew a contract with an agency or local governmental entity for goods or services of \$1 million or more.

Company	FID or EIN No	0
Address		
City	State	Zip
I,	, as a representative of	
certify and affirm that this con	npany is not on the Scrutinized Companie	es with Activities in Sudan
List or the Scrutinized Compa	nies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum	Energy Sector List.
Signature	Title	
Printed Name	Date	

Bidder must fully complete and return this form with its Bid.

Manatee County BCC IFB No. 25-R086424DJ 37

ATTACHMENT H, ANTI-HUMAN TRAFFICKING AFFIDAVIT

(Section 787.06, Florida Statutes)

was sv	Before me, the undersigned authority worn and says that the following information in the says that the following information in the says that the following information is the says that the says the says that the says the says that the says that the says that the says that the says		, who
1.	My name isauthorized by the Company to provi		
2.	I am over eighteen years of age and knowledge.	the following information is	given from my own personal
3.	Company is a nongovernmental entire for labor or services as defined in Se	·	• •
4.	This affidavit is made and given by applicable Florida laws regarding s from false statements and misrepres	worn affidavits and the per	
Signat	ure	_	
STAT	E OF VTY OF		
Sworn	to (or affirmed) and subscribed before	re me by means of	
☐ ph	ysical presence or online notariza	tion	
this	day of	_, 2024, by	, who
	is personally known to me or has produced	as:	dentification.
_	CK APPLICABLE BOXES TO ION 117.05, FLORIDA STATUTES		TION REQUIREMENT OF
Signat	ure of Notary Public	My Commission Expires:	
(Legib	oly print, type, or stamp commissioned	l name of Notary Public and	d affix official notary seal)

Bidder must fully complete and return this form with its Bid

Manatee County BCC IFB No. 25-R086424DJ 38

ATTACHMENT I - BID PRICING FORM 25-R086424DJ GENERATOR AND PUMP PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR

Bidders must provide prices for each available line item on each tab for their bid to be considered responsive.

Note: Quantities listed are estimates only and in no way a guarantee of actual quantities.

ITEM#	DESCRIPTION	ESTIMATED QUANTITIES FOR BID PURPOSES ONLY	U/M	COST PER YEAR *Quarterly Inspections Performed 3 Times Annually	Extended Price for Quarterly Inspections	ANNUAL SERVICE	Extended Price for Annual Service	4 HOUR LOAD BANK *Pricing not used as part of the award.
1	15 KW	1	EA					
2	20 KW	3	EA					
3	25 KW	12	EA					
4	27 KW	1	EA					
5	30 KW	7	EA					
6	35 KW	3	EA					
7	40 KW	6	EA					
8	50 KW	5	EA					
9	60 KW	20	EA					
10	65 KW	3	EA					
11	70 KW	2	EA					
12	78 KW	2	EA					
13	80 KW	23	EA					
14	100 KW	11	EA					
15	125 KW	17	EA					
16	128 KW	1	EA					
17	130 KW	2	EA					
18	150 KW	8	EA					
19	155 KW	1	EA					
20	180 KW	4	EA					
21	200 KW	5	EA					
22	250 KW	1	EA					
23	300 KW	6	EA					
24	350 KW	4	EA					
25	380 KW	2	EA					
26	400 KW	5	EA					
27	420 KW	1	EA					
28	450 KW	1	EA					
29	500 KW	1	EA					
30	510 KW	1	EA					
31	600 KW	2	EA					
32	650 KW	1	EA					
33	1825 KW	4	EA					
34	2000 KW	3	EA					
35	EMG PUMP	6	EA					
36	DAY TANKS	4	EA					
	SUBTOTAL							
TOTAL PI	RICE FOR QUARTERLY INSPECT	IONS AND ANNUAL	SERVICE					

Item #	Description	Price
	*Pricing not used as part of the av	vard.
37	Labor (Hourly Rate)	
38	After Hours (Hourly Rate)	
39	Travel Reimbursement (Per Mile)	
40	Parts (Markup %)	

EXHIBITS

Exhibit 1 Scope of Services

Exhibit 2 Minimum Qualifications

Exhibit 3 Equipment and Location List

EXHIBIT 1, SCOPE OF SERVICES IFB No. 25-R086424DJ

1.01 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Manatee County (hereinafter in this Scope referred to as County) owns and operates three regional water reclamation facilities (WRFs): the North Regional Water Reclamation Facility (NRWRF), the Southwest Water Reclamation Facility (SWWRF), the Southeast Water Reclamation Facility (SEWRF), three Manatee Agricultural Reuse Supply Reuse Supply (MARS) Stations, and Lift Stations throughout Manatee County

1.02 SCOPE OF WORK

Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment, and supervision needed to provide at a minimum manufacturer's prescribed maintenance services that allow Manatee County to operate our generators and associated equipment reliably, safely, and effectively at all three Water Reclamation Facilities and Lift Station. This work also includes a limited provision for repairs and replacement of OEM parts.

CONTRACTOR REQUIREMENTS

- **A. Provide Scheduled Inspections** All Generators on this list shall be serviced four times per year. Three quarterly inspections and one annual inspection. Specific service schedule(s) shall be determined per the County's authorized representative.
- 1. Provide **Annual Service**: that include at a minimum:
 - Engine inspection and test run
 - Oil change with corresponding filter change, oil and coolant samples
 - Fuel filter(s) change,
 - Fuel system inspection and operation,
 - Cooling system inspection and operation
 - Air intake system
 - Exhaust inspection and operation
 - Block heater inspection
 - Starting system inspection and operation
 - Generator system, inspection and operation
 - Transfer switch operation

2. Provide **3 quarterly** inspections:

Everything in the annual service minus:

- Oil change with corresponding filter change.
- Fuel filter
- Transfer switch operation

B. Provide a 4-hour load bank test, on an "as needed basis" per the Manatee County authorized representative.

Description of the work

- 1. Inspections: Furnish all labor, material and tools to professionally perform the major and minor inspections as part of the cost for the quoted inspection price.
 - i. Annual Service (See scope)
 - ii. Quarterly Inspections (See scope)
- 2. Repairs required

Repairs will be authorized by Manatee County representative on an "as needed" basis and will be invoiced on a time and material basis.

3. Load Bank:

Shall be on an "as needed" basis. The prices quoted shall include all time, travel and material to perform a four-hour load bank test of the particular and return it to normal operation.

C. Provide inspections of day tanks. Some generators have a day tank for fuel storage.

Provide **Annual Service**: that include at a minimum:

- Inspect for leaks
- Pump inspection and operation
- Change filters

Performance and General Work Information

- Response time (emergency and routine situations)
 Generally, most work shall be performed during normal weekday hours 7:00
 A.M. to 3:30 P.M. Monday through Friday, excluding holidays. In accordance with a work schedule pre-approved by the Water Reclamation Facility.
- 2. Manatee County will hold the contractor to the following response times:

 <u>Contractor must be able to respond via phone with-in two hours of initial contact from the Manatee County representative.</u>

If the representative calls with an emergency service request the Contractor <u>shall</u> send a qualified technician to the site within four (4) hours of the request. Or as agreed to by the representative and the Contractor.

In the unlikely event that the scheduled maintenance or repairs cannot be performed during normal business hours there <u>may be</u> weekend or evening work scheduled to accommodate these rare circumstances.

3. General Contractor Rules:

The Contractor's employees shall confine their operations to those areas indicated by the Manatee County authorized representative and shall conform to all site rules and regulations affecting the work and work area. These rules and regulations include but are not limited to:

- i. Not passing into areas beyond the designated limits of the work.
- ii. Keeping public areas free of waste materials
- iii. Keeping generator and rooms clean from all fluids associated with the generator.
- iv. Conducting themselves in a professional manor.
- v. Removing all rubbish from the work site at end of the work period. Areas are to be cleaned to as found conditions, before leaving the premises.
- vi. Observe all electric and OSHA safety codes while on County property.
- vii. Follow all rules associated with site security, to include sign-in and sign-out, without exception!

Any work-related deficiencies found shall be reported in writing (on service report) immediately to the county authorized representative, along with recommendations for rectifying such deficiencies.

Once the repair measures have been approved and authorized by the County, the Contractor shall commence work as soon as possible after receiving authorization from the contact person. All Repairs shall be tested for proper operation with a County representative present.

Contractor must maintain an inventory of replacement parts and have a staff of trained technicians to provide services and support.

1.03 GENERAL REQUIRMENTS

A. Service Reports: It is the Contractors' responsibility to:

Provide written service reports detailing all repairs or service done at the work site.

Include on the Service Reports:

- 1. Arrival and departure times of every person on the job,
- 2. The date performed,
- 3. The location of work,
- 4. The type of work performed.

Reports shall show listing of all parts and materials approved and used.

The Contractor shall obtain a signature from the County site contact person at the end of each service performed.

The Contractor is required to leave a hard copy of the service report with the County authorized representative prior to leaving the site, in addition, the Contractor shall email a legible final service report to the site contact.

B. Invoices and payments:

- 1. It is required that all invoices match the service reports.
- 2. An invoice should only be for one site, do not include multiple sites.
- 3. It is required that all costs billed match the quoted prices.
- 4. If parts or equipment are required for repairs, the County will pay the Contractor's plus percent markup listed in the bid form. Receipts are required to verify the Contractor's cost.
- 5. Including all hours actually on site. (Do not include travel time.)
- 6. All invoices must be itemized.
- 7. Do not charge for "miscellaneous supplies", parts must be itemized per item 4.
- 8. All repair service will be at the hourly rate for time actually at the site and must match the service report recorded times.

All prices quoted are to include: all labor, material and travel time needed to properly perform the particular Preventive Maintenance (PM), load bank test or the one-time service.

EXHIBIT 2, MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS IFB No. 25-R086424DJ

Bidders must submit the information and documentation requested that confirms Bidder meets the following minimum qualification requirement(s):

1. Must be registered with the State of Florida, Division of Corporations to do business in Florida.

No documentation is required. The County will verify registration.

2. The Bidder has provided Generator and Pump Maintenance and Repair services for at least three (3) clients since February 1, 2021, each of which included generator maintenance and repair.

Provide the following information for the three (3) professional references that are agreeable to responding to an email by the County.

- a) Name of client
- b) Location (City/State)
- c) Client contact name
- d) Contact phone
- e) Contact email
- f) Service dates (Start/End)
- g) Components
- 3. Bidder is not listed on the Florida State Board of Administration, Scrutinized List of Prohibited Companies found at the SBAFLA website at http://www.sbafla.com/fsb/FundsWeManage/FRSPensionPlan/PFIA/tabid/1478/ItemId/3354/Default.aspx

No documentation is required. The County will verify.

4. Bidder is not on the Florida Department of Management Services Suspended, Debarred, Convicted Vendor Lists.

No documentation is required. The County will verify.

5. Bidder is not on the Federal Excluded Parties (Convicted Vendor) List

No documentation is required. The County will verify.

6. Bidder is not on the FDOT Contractor Suspension List

No documentation is required. The County will verify.

7. Bidder has not been convicted of a public entity crime per Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, or environmental law in the past five (5) years.

Bidder must complete Attachment C and submit with its Bid attesting that it has not been convicted of a public entity crime or environmental law in the past five (5) years.

8. If Bidder is submitting as a joint venture, Bidder must file the required documents with the Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulation as required by Florida Statute Section 489.119, prior to the Due Date and Time of this IFB.

If Bidder is a joint venture, provide a copy of Bidder's approved filing with the Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulation.

9. Bidder has no reported conflict of interests in relation to this IFB.

If no conflicts of interests are present, Bidder must submit a fully completed copy of Attachment E.

If there is a potential conflict of interest, on a separate page submit a statement to that affect and disclose the name of any officer, director or agent who is an employee of the County. Disclose the name of any County employee who owns, directly or indirectly, any interest in Bidder's firm or any of its branches.

END OF EXHIBIT 2

			25-R086424DJ GI	NERATOR AND PUI	MP PREVENTATIVE MAINTE	NANCE AND REPAIR				A COPE
LIFT STATION NAME	RTU#	Region	KW/SIZE	MANUFACTURER		SERIAL NUMBER	ADDRESS	CITY	ТҮРЕ	ASSET NUMBER
TARA 3	348	Е	15	GENERAC	12586890100	2108819	6718 Pleasant Hill Rd.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
FOX CHASE	542	N	20	GENERAC	12770400100	2109485	9218 29th St. E.	Palmetto	Stationary	N/A
S-6	342	SE	20	GENERAC	12761480100	2109321	2800 27th St. E.	Bradenton	Stationary	/N/A
16-D	211	SW	20	GENERAC	12586720100	2108818	4629 26th Ave. W.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
LAKEWOOD RANCH 1	356	E	25	KOHLER	25REZG	2287593	6735 Tumbleweed Trail	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
TARA 1	496	E	25	KOHLER	25REZG	2287592	6501 Stone River Rd.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
TARA 2	497	E	25	KOHLER	30REZG	SGM3237GN	6901 Stone River Rd.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
TARA 6	613	Е	25	KOHLER	25REZG	SGM3237GM	7406 Tara Preserve Ln.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
TARA 7	616	Е	25	KOHLER	45REZG	SGM3238L9	6507 Tailfeather Way	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
TARA 8	617	Е	25	KOHLER	30REZG	SGM3237GP	6803 Tailfeather Way	Bradenton	Stationary	yN/A
66th St L.S.	237	SW	25	BALDOR		P0604100005	1806 51st St W	Bradenton	Portable	49517
Ellwood Park	392	Е	25	BALDOR		P0604110006	44th Ave E and Useppa Dr	Bradenton	Portable	49521
Artisan Lake MLS	843	NW	25	BALDOR		P0604260005	8472 69th St E.	Ellenton	Portable	49522
66th Street - Utilities	138	SC	25	BALDOR		P0604100006	2484 53RD AVE. W.	Bradenton	Portable	49518
SOUTH EAST MLS	677	Е	25	BALDOR		P0604110004	44th Ave E and Useppa Dr	Bradenton	Portable	49519
POPE RD MASTER	683	NW	25	BALDOR		P0604110005	12405 44th Ave. E	Bradenton	Portable	49520
RIVER WILDERNESS 1	529	N	27	KOHLER	20REOZJC	SGM323FCJ	3441 Brookridge Ln.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
MARINELAND	331	Е	30	KOHLER	30REOZJC	2267598	6729 65th Ave E	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
RIVER CLUB 3	347	Е	30	BALDOR	IDLC-3030-JD	P1109060002	10205 Club House Dr.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
TARA 5	354	Е	30	BALDOR	ILDC-30-JD	P1109060003	6514 Turner Gap Rd.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
RIVER CLUB 1	494	Е	30	GENERAC	12586950100	2108820		Bradenton	Stationary	/
RYE ROAD SCHOOL	355	NE	30	KOHLER	30REOZK	33DGGMKR0070	206 Rye Rd. E	Bradenton	Stationary	/
MILLS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	801	NW	30	KOHLER	30REOZJC	SGM32B9MX	,	Palmetto	Stationary	4
37-A	302	SC	30	KOHLER	30REOZJC	SGM323MPG		Bradenton	Stationary	/
32-AA	334	SC	35	GENERAC	12770190100	2109325	509 28th Ave. W.	Bradenton	Stationary	
KINNAN SCHOOL	299	SE	35	GENERAC	19149300100 D4.5F.1/SD035	9553098	Prospect & Tallevast	Bradenton	Stationary	/
THE LOOP	147	SW	35	GENERAC	19149300100 D4.5F.1/SD035	9553098		Bradenton	Stationary	'
THE GARDENS @ PALMAIRE	453	E	40	KOHLER	45REZG	2336485	5790 Gardens Drive	Bradenton	Stationary	/
N7A	554	NW	40	KOHLER	40REOZJC	SGM32BB8	2889 16th Ave. E.	Palmetto	Stationary	'
3-A	487	SE	40	BALDOR	IDLC-40-JD	P1108090006	2850 Tallevast Rd.	Bradenton	Stationary	/
1-M MLS	677	SW	40	KOHLER	IDEC 10 1D	388855	14700 The Masters Ave	Bradenton	Portable	64986
NWWTP	077	N	40	BLUE STAR		113528-1-2	8430 69TH ST. E.	Palmetto	Portable	66214
NWWTP		N	40	BLUE STAR		113528-1-1		Palmetto	Portable	66215
UNIVERSITY PARK	483	E	50	BALDOR	ILDC50-JU	P1108080003	6926 Langley Pl.	Bradenton	Stationary	
LEXINGTON 1	597	N	50	KOHLER	50REOZJD	SGM32BB39		Parrish	Stationary	/
GATES CREEK	335	NE	50	GENERAC	SD0050JG163.4D18HPSY	9182968	11312 3rd Ave. E.	Bradenton	Stationary	/
GARDEN LAKES ESTATES	271	SE	50	KOHLER	80REO2JF	SGM3238MF	11312 Std Avc. E.	Drademon	Stationary	/
MANATEE OAKS	474	SE	50	BALDOR	IDLC50-3JU	P1108090003	4702 34th Ct. E.	Bradenton	Stationary	'.
LINGER LODGE (#14)	325	E	60	GENERAC	12584420100	2108958	7030 85th St. Ct. E.	Bradenton	Stationary	/
RIVER CLUB 2	495	E	60	GENERAC	12586920100	2108959		Bradenton	Stationary	/
RIVER CLOB 2 RIVER PLACE	635	E	60	BALDOR	IDLC-60-JD	P1108090001		Bradenton	Stationary	y N/A
MILL CREEK 1	350	NE	60	KOHLER	60REOZJC	2267615	711 Mill Run E.	Bradenton	Stationary	<u> </u>
WINN DIXIE PLAZA WEST	159	SC		GENERAC	19149400100 D4.5F.1/SD060	9551534		Bradenton	,	/
32-A	303	SC	60	BALDOR	1DLC60-3JU	P1311050003		Bradenton	Stationary	
30-EE	333	SE	60	GENERAC	19149340100 D4.5F.1/SD060	9553099	3831 11th St. E.		Stationary	
S-3	339	SE SE	60	KOHLER	60REOZJC	1007231354		Bradenton Bradenton	Stationary	
S-5					13934980100					
	341	SE	60	GENERAC GENERAC		2114397		Bradenton	Stationary	
SABAL HARBOR 1	386	SE		GENERAC KOHLER	13935050100	2114398		Bradenton	Stationary	
40-A	429	SE	60		60REOZIC	2264937	3550 63rd Ave. E.	Bradenton	Stationary	
14-A	434	SE	60	KOHLER	60REOZJC	2266383		Bradenton	Stationary	
PERIDIA 1	476	SE	60	BALDOR	1DLC60-3JU	JP1311060002	5050 Peridia Blvd. E.	Bradenton	Stationary	4
UNIVERSITY GROVES 2	681	SE	60	KOHLER	60REOZJD	SGM32B6B3		Bradenton	Stationary	
66th Street Utilities	237	SW	60	GENERAC		2073073	5065 65th St W.	Bradenton	Portable	54754

			25-K080424DJ G1	ENERATOR AND PUR	MP PREVENTATIVE MAINTE	NANCE AND REPAIR				ACCET
LIFT STATION NAME	RTU#	Region	KW/SIZE	MANUFACTURER	MODEL NUMBER	SERIAL NUMBER	ADDRESS	CITY	TYPE	ASSET NUMBER
39 A MLS	428	SE	60	GENERAC		2073095	5511 39th Street E.	Bradenton	Portable	45753
Aritans Lakes MLS	839	NW	60	GENERAC		2073103	9760 GILLETTE ROAD	Palmetto	Portable	45752
NWWTP	549	N	60	GENERAC		2073029	2887 69th Street E.	Palmetto	Portable	45751
1-M MLS		SW	60	CATERPILLAR		TP32379781			Portable	64986
NWWTP		N	60	BLUE STAR		113529-1-1	8430 69TH ST. E.	Palmetto	Portable	66216
DECOMMISSIONED!	428		65	KOHLER		388856	5511 39th Street E.	Bradenton	Portable	36492
POPE RD MASTER	683	NE	65	BALDOR		C0609240004	12405 44th.Ave.E.	Bradenton	Portable	49514
SEWWTP Shelter	650	Е	65	BALDOR		C0609240009	dead line!)	Bradenton	Portable	49515
UNIVERSITY PLACE 1	627	Е	70	GENERAC	12584240100	2108789	8005 Planters Knoll Terr.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
23-A	410	SC	70	GENERAC	12587080100	2108790	1312 53rd Ave. W.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
SOUTH EAST MLS	677	Е	78	KOHLER		4	AVE.	Bradenton	Portable	62207
66th Street - Utilities	99	SW	78	KOHLER		4	5075 65th Street W.	Bradenton	Portable	62206
BRADEN RIVER (#17)	324	Е	80	CUMMINS	DGDA60HZ	B090019381	6290 Linger Lodge Rd.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
PALM AIRE 5	459	Е	80	KOHLER	80REO25-D	2773111	6200 Country Club Way	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
COOPER CREEK (#15)	482	Е	80	KOHLER	80REO25D	2773005	8300 Cooper Creek Blvd.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
RIVERDALE 1	332	NE	80	GENERAC	13830270100	2114108	412 43rd St. Blvd. E.	Bradenton	Stationary	4
COUNTRY OAKS	462	NE	80		IDLC80-3JU	P1002220002	8202 Cypress Lake Drive	Sarasota	Stationary	<u> </u>
GREYHAWK LANDINGS 1	618	NE	80	KOHLER	80REOZJD	2271963	1004 Brambling Ct.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
MILL CREEK 6	642	NE	80		IDLC80-3JU	P0912030002	14310 18th Pl. E.	Bradenton	Stationary	<u> </u>
PLANTATION BAY	514	NW	80	BALDOR	IDLC80-3JU	P100104001	house)	Ellenton		<u>'</u>
MEMPHIS ROAD	534	NW	80	CUMMINS	DGDA60HZ	B070019382	1721 17th St. E.	Palmetto	Stationary	4
REGENCY OAKS 1	547	NW	80		IDLC80-3JU	P131104004		Palmetto	Stationary	<u> </u>
GLENN LAKES 1	119	SC	80	GENERAC	12770060100	2109607		Bradenton	Stationary	<u> </u>
31-A	126	SC	80	KOHLER	80REO25-NH	2273006	1710 47th Ave. Dr. W.	Bradenton	Stationary	/
29-A	129	SC	80	GENERAC	12584320100	2109049	1801 55th Ave. W.	Bradenton	,	<u> </u>
21-A	432	SE	80	GENERAC	12584390100	2108622		Bradenton	Stationary	
1-M MLS	203	SW	80	BALDOR	12304370100	C0801190008		Bradenton	Portable	52057
39 A MLS	428	SE	80	KOHLER		2244750	5511 39th Street E.	Bradenton	Portable	53607
1-D MLS	237	SW	80	BALDOR		C0803090004	5065 65th St W.	Bradenton	Portable	52056
66th Street Utilities	99	SC	80	BALDOR		C0707210011X	5065 65th St W.	Bradenton	Portable	52058
N1H MLS	533	N N	80	BALDOR		C0803090014	1355 41ST AVE. E.	Ellenton	Portable	52058
27 MLS Shelter	138	SC	80	BALDOR		C0704280004	2484 53RD AVE. W.	Bradenton	Portable	51008
LAKEWOOD RCH MLS	362	E	80	BALDOR		C0704280004 C0704280009		Bradenton	Portable	51008
Lakewood MLS	71	E	80	KOHLER		2244749	9760 GILLETTE ROAD	Palmetto	Portable	53608
NWWTP	/ 1		80	BLUE STAR		113530-1-1		Palmetto	Portable	66217
RIVER CLUB 4	352	n E	100	KOHLER	100REOZJE	2335650		Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
PALM AIRE 3	443	E	100	KOHLER	100REOZJE	2335077	5500 Country Club Way	Bradenton	Stationary	<u> </u>
MOTE RANCH 1	478	E	100	KOHLER	100REOZJD	2266356	5850 Carriage Drive	Bradenton		<u>'</u>
LAKEWOOD RANCH RIVERWALK	602	E	100	KOHLER	100REOZJD	2266382		Bradenton		/
GREENBROOK 2	620	E	100	KOHLER	100REOZJD	2266355	13324 Adventure Place	Bradenton	Stationary	<u> </u>
COPPERSTONE 1	824	N	100	KOHLER	100REOZJC	2137023	11306 78th St. E.	Parrish	Stationary	/
	327	NE NE	100	KOHLER	100REOZJE	2335903	5320 87th St. E.		Stationary	<u> </u>
ROSEDALE 1 CREEKWOOD 1	349	NE NE			100REOZJD	2272525		Bradenton		
N8B	543	NW	100		12769920100	2109713		Palmetto	Stationary	
FAIRWAY IMPERIAL	583	NW	100	KOHLER	100REOZJF	SGM32BB7F			-	
ARTISAN LAKES MASTER		NW	100	KOHLER			·	Palmetto	Stationary	_
	838				100REOZJE	2335060		Palmetto	Stationary	
BRADEN WOODS (#18)	326	E N	125	CUMMINS	DSHAE60HZ	B070017255	6555 99th St. E.	Bradenton	Stationary	-
RIVER WILDERNESS 4	532		125	KOHLER	125REOZJD	2217912	11721 Old Tampa Rd.	Parrish	Stationary	
CROSS CREEK	837	N	125		D125-6	C66LSDA00549		Parrish	Stationary	
SAMOSET 1	308	SE	125	KOHLER	125REOZJD	2220200	1801 34th Ave. E.	Bradenton	Stationary	4
SABAL COVE	470	SE	125	BALDOR	IDLC125-3JU	P0912020005	5340 33rd St. E.	Bradenton	Stationary	
SEWTP Shelter	677	E	125	KATOLIGHT		2004		Bradenton		47018
Atrisan Lakes MLS	838	NW	125	KATOLIGHT		LM393140	9760 GILLETTE ROAD	Palmetto	Portable	47020

										ASSET
LIFT STATION NAME	RTU#	Region	KW/SIZE	MANUFACTURER	MODEL NUMBER	SERIAL NUMBER	ADDRESS	CITY	TYPE	NUMBER
1-D	237	SW	125	KATOLIGHT	MODEL NOMBER	1M396106986345060		Bradenton	Portable	47021
66th Street Utilities	99	SC	125	KATOLIGHT		LM244356	5065 65th St W.	Bradenton	Portable	47019
13-A MLS	408	SE	125	KATOLIGHT		LM394353	103 63rd Ave W.	Bradenton	Portable	47022
66th Street - Utilities	99	SC	125	AKSA	APD-AT82	U246938Y	6754 26th St. W.	Bradenton	Portable	59662
39- A MLS	650	SE		BALDOR	THE THOSE	P0610020001	9158 Landfill Rd	Bradenton	Portable	49516
Lakewood MLS	683	E	125	BALDOR		P0704160004		Bradenton	Portable	51010
66th Street - Utilities	99	SC		BALDOR		P0704100001		Bradenton	Portable	51011
#5 MLS	,,	SW	125	CATERPILLAR		TP31995851	3003 03th St 11.	Brucenton	Portable	64987
Tideview MLS		N	125	CATERPILLAR		TP31995867			Portable	64988
NWWTP		n	125	BLUE STAR		113531-1-1	8430 69TH ST. E.	Palmetto	Portable	66218
ARNOLD PALMER GREEN 1	689	E	128	KOHLER	125RE0ZJG	3366GMLH0002		Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
LAKEWOOD TOWN CENTER 1	379	E		KOHLER	125REOZJF	2335869	8070 Natures Way	Bradenton	Stationary	/
LEGACY 10	660	E	130	GENERAC	13830260100	2114166	7955 Legacy Blvd.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
LAKEWOOD NATIONAL	289	E	150	KOHLER	150REOZJF	3379GMHL0001	7,700 Eegacy Ervan	Bracenton	Stationary	N/A
41-A	454	E	150	KOHLER	150REOZJD	2268430	5195 Whitfield Ave.	Bradenton	Stationary	/
N1C	546	N	150	CUMMINS	DSHAA60HZ	B070017254		Ellenton	Stationary	4
TWIN RIVERS 1	595	N	150	GENERAC	1383020100	2114284		Parrish	Stationary	N/A
STAR FARMS 1	178	NE	150	KOHLER	150REOZJE	3379GMLF0036	18460 Star Farms Loop	Ranch	Stationary	/
MANATEE PALMS 1	313	NE	150	CUMMINS	DSHAA60HZ	A070016326	115 Kay Rd.	Bradenton	Stationary	<u> </u>
WATERLEFE 1	394	NE	150	GENERAC	12769860100	2109688	10335 Waterlefe Ave.	Bradenton	Stationary	v N/A
TREVESTA	875	NW	150	KOHLER	150REOZJF	3370GMLH0019		Palmetto	Stationary	4
UNIVERSITY GROVES 1	659	SE	150	GENERAC	SD150KG176	50014028	3622 80th Dr. E.	Bradenton	Stationary	<u> </u>
2-A	439	SC		KOHLER	150REOZJE	2335834	350 Magellan Dr.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
LAKEWOOD RANCH RE-PUMP	603	E		KOHLER	180REOZJD	2222555	8155 Lakewood Ranch Blvd.		Stationary	<u> </u>
N2B	548	NW		KOHLER	180REOZJD	2270709		Palmetto	,	'
36-A	241	SC		KOHLER	180REOZJE	2335871	1602 38th Ave. W.	Bradenton	Stationary	'
9-D	226	SW		KOHLER	180REOZJD	4444554	6504 5th Ave. N.W.	Bradenton	Stationary	4
COLONY COVE 6	522	N	200	KATOLIGHT	D200FRJ4	1VA535776		Ellenton	Stationary	<u> </u>
HARRISON RANCH 1	815	N		KOHLER	200REOZJF	SGM32BCT2	5323 98th Ave. E.	Parrish	Stationary	4
UPPER MANATEE RIVER RD.	330	NE	200	CUMMINS	DSHAC60HZ	C070035622	Rd.	Bradenton	Stationary	/
30-AA	248	SC	200	KOHLER	200REOZJD	2219683	4602 34th St. W.	Bradenton	Stationary	/
BRADEN RIVER HIGH SCHOOL	649	SE	200	BALDOR	IDLC200-3J	P1003040001		Bradenton		
#5 MASTER	71	SW	250	CATERPILLAR	C9/LC5	S9L232351/G5A03278	4150 Gulf Dr.	Bradenton	Stationary	/
TARA 20 MASTER	323	E	300	BALDOR	HC1434F1L-0080	P0912020001		Bradenton	Stationary	/
PARRISH MASTER	999	N		BALDOR	IDLC300-3DU	M10L501119	12110 Erie Rd.	Parrish	Stationary	/
27-A MASTER	138	SC		KOHLER	300REOZJ	5GM32HB4H	2484 53rd Ave. W.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
12-A MASTER	139	SC	300	GENERAC	5D0500KG221522D18HPNN2	3001800356	2007 Bay Dr.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
Bayshore Yatch Basin	101	SC	300	GENERAC		97A02524-S	2016 69th Street W	Bradenton	Portable	53980
SPENCER PARRISH MARS			300	DETROIT DIESEL	300DSE	2029432		Parrish	Stationary	1
HERITAGE HARBOUR MASTER	640	NE	350	BALDOR	IDLC350.3DV	P1409240002	Crossing	Bradenton	Stationary	'
TIDEVUE 4 MASTER	533	NW	350	GENERAC	SD0350KG17129D18HPNN3	30021808181	1355 41st Ave. E.	Ellenton	Stationary	4
1-D MASTER	237	SW	350	CATERPILLAR	CL15/LC6	C5E02163		Bradenton	Stationary	/
Central Laboratory			350	KOHLER	REOZV	2077914	4751 66TH STREET WEST	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
SOUTHEAST MASTER LIFT STATION	677	Е		CUMMINS	DQAF5769138	1060967230		Bradenton	Stationary	<u> </u>
SOUTHEAST MASTER LIFT STATION	677			PRYCO		C522159		Bradenton	Stationary	<u>'</u>
ARTISAN LAKES 2	851	NW	380	CUMMINS	DQHAB60HZ	H070098480			Stationary	<u> </u>
ARTISAN LAKES 2	851			PRYCO		C 785072			Stationary	
LAKEWOOD RANCH MASTER	362	Е		KOHLER	400ROZD71	368726	11600 Clubhouse Dr.	Bradenton	Stationary	
BAYSHORE YACHT BASIN MASTER	101	SC		KOHLER	400REOZJC	33LFGMMC0006			Stationary	4
13-A MASTER	408	SE		KOHLER	750RE0ZMD	5GM32H8RC	112 63rd Ave. E.	Bradenton	Stationary	
1-M MASTER	203	SW		CATERPILLAR	C18	NAW00771		Bradenton	Stationary	
66th Street - Utilities	1	SW		CATERPILLAR	SR4B	BGK01802	4530 66st W.	Bradenton		63863
RYE ROAD MARS			420	DETROIT DIESEL	400DSE	2030153		Bradenton	Stationary	
	1	1	· -	ROIT DIEGED						

			25-R086424DJ GI	ENERATOR AND PU	MP PREVENTATIVE MAINTEN	NANCE AND REPAIR				
										ASSET
LIFT STATION NAME	RTU#	Region	KW/SIZE	MANUFACTURER	MODEL NUMBER	SERIAL NUMBER	ADDRESS	CITY	TYPE	NUMBER
MISSIONARY VILLAGE MASTER	329	NE	450	CUMMINS	DFEJ*2370793	G240359931	1201 117th St. E.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
39-A MASTER	428	SE	500	CUMMINS	500DFED#3241	K020437339	5621 39th St. E.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
39- A MLS	428	SE	50 Gallon	SIMPLX	SST 50C	44930	5621 39th St. E.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
RYE ROAD MASTER	892	NE	510	KOHLER	500REOZJB	33GLGMHD0004	212 Rye Rd. N.E.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
POPE ROAD MASTER	683	NE	600	KOHLER	600REOZM	2092887	12405 44th Ave. E.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
POPE ROAD MASTER	683	NE	50 Gallon	PRYCO		C426891	12405 44th Ave. E.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
N1B MASTER	549	NW	600	KOHLER	600REOZVB	SGM32KCMP	2887 69th St. E.	Palmetto	Stationary	N/A
63RD AVENUE MARS			650	DETROIT DIESEL	650DESB	2030367	3550 63rd Avenue East	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
Southeast WWRF			1825	CATERPILLAR	SR4B	7RN01830	3331 LENA ROAD	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
Southeast WWRF			1825	CATERPILLAR	SR-4	5SJ00346	3332 LENA ROAD	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
Southwest WWRF			1825	CATERPILLAR	SR-4	5SJ00355	5101 65TH STREET WEST	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
North County WWRF			1825	CATERPILLAR	SR-4	5SJ00351	8501 69TH STREET EAST	Palmetto	Stationary	N/A
Southeast WWRF			2000	CATERPILLAR	SR-4	5SJ00350	3331 LENA ROAD	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
Southwest WWRF			2000	CATERPILLAR	SR4B-GS	SBJ00307	5101 65TH STREET WEST	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
North County WWRF			2000	CATERPILLAR	SR4B	FDN01597	8500 69TH STREET EAST	Palmetto	Stationary	N/A
MIRROR LAKE	107	SC	EMG PUMP	GODWIN	CD103M (PUMP)	0844015/12	5900 34th St.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
STATE ROAD 70	381	SE	EMG PUMP	THOMPSON	4JSCM-DJDS-24T-DC	4JSCM-189	5236 45th St. E.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
DEL WEBB @ BAYVIEW	907	N	EMG PUMP	GODWIN	CD160M	20090788/02	10275 Bay Winds Pkwy.	Parrish	Stationary	N/A
LORRAINE LAKES 1	172	NE	EMG PUMP	GODWIN	CD225M	1865194/01	16270 Silver Sky Cir.	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A
N1H	513	NW	EMG PUMP	GLOBAL	4GSTAPIKI4S2SG	1873304	11220 US 41 North	Palmetto	Stationary	N/A
2-D	236	SW	EMG PUMP	GODWIN	CD103M	18647433/02	3820 9th Ave. W	Bradenton	Stationary	N/A



AGREEMENT No. [number]

[TITLE]

between

MANATEE COUNTY (COUNTY)

and

[CONTRACTOR NAME] (CONTRACTOR)

AGREEMENT FOR [TITLE]

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of this [date] day of [month], 2024 ("Effective Date"), by and between MANATEE COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, ("COUNTY"), with offices located at 1112 Manatee Avenue West, Bradenton, Florida 34205, and [COMPANY NAME], a [<enter the state of incorporation/organization and identify if it is a corporation/company/limited liability corporation, etc.], ("CONTRACTOR") with offices located at [address], and duly authorized to conduct business in the State of Florida. COUNTY and CONTRACTOR are collectively referred to as the "Parties" and individually as "Party."

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR engages in the business of [title]; and

WHEREAS, COUNTY has determined that it is necessary, expedient and in the best interest of COUNTY to retain CONTRACTOR to render the non-professional services described in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, [this Agreement is a result of CONTRACTOR'S submission of a proposal/bid in response to Request for Proposal/Invitation for Bid No. number and COUNTY thereafter conducted a competitive selection process OR this Agreement is a sole source/single source contract] in accordance with the Manatee County Procurement Code.

NOW, THEREFORE, the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, and representations contained herein, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1. SCOPE OF SERVICES

CONTRACTOR shall provide non-professional services as described in **Exhibit A**, Scope of Services ("Services"). "Task" as used in this Agreement, refers to particular categories/groupings of Services specified in **Exhibit A**.

ARTICLE 2. EXHIBITS INCORPORATED

This Agreement consists of a primary contract and [number] exhibits, which are as follows:

Exhibit A Scope of Services

Exhibit B Fee Rate Schedule

Exhibit C Affidavit of No Conflict

Exhibit D Anti-Human Trafficking Affidavit

Exhibit E Insurance and Bond Requirements

These Exhibits are attached hereto and are incorporated into this Agreement. In the event of a conflict between the terms and conditions provided in the Articles of this Agreement and any Exhibit, the provisions contained within these Articles shall prevail unless the Exhibit specifically states that it shall prevail.

ARTICLE 3. AGREEMENT TERM

- A. This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and remain in force for an initial term of [number of years], unless terminated by COUNTY pursuant to Article 9.
- B. COUNTY reserves the right to extend the initial term of [number years] for an additional [number], [number]-year periods.

ARTICLE 4. COMPENSATION

- A. CONTRACTOR shall be compensated for the Services and all expenditures incurred in providing the Services.
- B. The fee rates specified in **Exhibit B** shall be the total compensation for the Services and shall contain all applicable costs, to include salaries, office operation, transportation, equipment, overhead, general and administrative, incidental expenses, fringe benefits and operating margin.

ARTICLE 5. INVOICES AND TIME OF PAYMENT

- A. Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR for the Services at a rate of compensation according to the deliverable payment schedule stated in **Exhibit B**.
- B. COUNTY shall approve of all invoices prior to payment.
- C. COUNTY shall have forty-five (45) days from the receipt of an invoice seeking payment of fees or costs to either pay the invoice, or notify CONTRACTOR that the deliverable, or any part thereof, is unacceptable.
- D. COUNTY shall have the right to retain from any payment due CONTRACTOR under this Agreement, an amount sufficient to satisfy any amount of liquidated damages due and owing to COUNTY by CONTRACTOR on any other Agreement between CONTRACTOR and COUNTY.
- E. All costs of providing the Services shall be the responsibility of CONTRACTOR.
- F. Any dispute between COUNTY and CONTRACTOR with regard to the Services or CONTRACTOR'S invoice shall be resolved pursuant to the dispute resolution procedures established by Manatee County Procurement Code and Article 12 of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 6. RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONTRACTOR

A. CONTRACTOR shall appoint an Agent with respect to the Services to be performed by CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement. CONTRACTOR'S Agent shall have the authority to make representations on behalf of CONTRACTOR, receive information, and interpret and define the needs of CONTRACTOR and make decisions pertinent to the Services. CONTRACTOR'S Agent shall have the right to designate other employees of CONTRACTOR to serve in his or her absence. CONTRACTOR reserves the right to

- designate a different agent, provided that COUNTY is given advance written notice thereof.
- B. CONTRACTOR shall perform the Services in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
- C. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all employees assigned to render the Services are duly qualified, registered, licensed or certified to provide the Services required.
- D. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for collecting all existing data required for the successful completion of each Task.
- E. CONTRACTOR shall not engage in any obligations, undertakings, contracts or professional obligations that create a conflict of interest, or even an appearance of a conflict of interest, with respect to the Services. CONTRACTOR attests to this via an Affidavit of No Conflict, **Exhibit C**.
- F. CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to rely upon information provided from COUNTY. Information may include, but is not limited to, additional services, consultations, investigations, and reports necessary for the execution of CONTRACTOR'S work under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall be fully responsible for verifying, to the extent practicable, documents and information provided by COUNTY and identifying any obvious deficiencies concerning the documents and information provided. CONTRACTOR shall notify COUNTY of any errors or deficiencies noted in such information provided and assist, to the extent practicable, COUNTY in the identification and resolution of same. CONTRACTOR agrees to incorporate the provisions of this paragraph in any subcontract into which it might enter with reference to the work performed under this Agreement.
- G. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the professional quality and technical accuracy of the Services and any other services furnished by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors or deficiencies in the Services.
- H. CONTRACTOR shall maintain an adequate and competent staff of professionally qualified persons during the term of this Agreement for the purpose of rendering the required Services hereunder. CONTRACTOR shall not sublet, assign or transfer any Services without prior written consent of COUNTY.
- I. COUNTY may require in writing that CONTRACTOR remove from the Services any of CONTRACTOR'S personnel that COUNTY determines to be incompetent, careless or otherwise objectionable. No claims for an increase in compensation or agreement term based on COUNTY'S use of this provision will be valid.
- J. CONTRACTOR understands and agrees that this is a firm fixed price contract and that there shall be no allowances or reimbursement for any cost whatsoever except as otherwise explicitly provided in this Agreement. CONTRACTOR agrees to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement, regardless of cost, for the sole and sufficient compensation

stated in Exhibit B with no expectation of additional compensation. COUNTY will not be obligated to pay CONTRACTOR any amount in excess of the firm fixed price specified in Exhibit B.

ARTICLE 7. RESPONSIBILITIES OF COUNTY

- A. COUNTY shall, through its County Administrator, appoint an individual to serve as County Representative. The County Representative shall have the authority to transmit instructions, receive information, interpret and define the policy of COUNTY and make decisions pertinent to the Services. COUNTY reserves the right to designate a different County Representative, provided that CONTRACTOR is given advance written notice thereof.
- B. COUNTY shall make available, at no cost to CONTRACTOR, information relative to the project that is useful in the performance of the Services.
- C. COUNTY shall provide prompt notice to CONTRACTOR whenever COUNTY observes or otherwise becomes aware of any defect in the performance of the Services.
- D. COUNTY shall give careful and reasonable consideration to the findings and recommendations of CONTRACTOR and shall respond and issue notices to proceed in a timely manner.
- E. COUNTY personnel shall be available on a time-permitting basis, where required and necessary to assist CONTRACTOR. The availability and necessity of said personnel to assist CONTRACTOR shall be at the discretion of COUNTY.
- F. COUNTY shall perform the responsibilities enumerated in this Article at no cost to CONTRACTOR.

ARTICLE 8. COUNTY OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT

The Parties agree that COUNTY shall have exclusive ownership of all reports, documents, designs, ideas, materials, reports, concepts, plans, creative works, and other work product developed for or provided to COUNTY in connection with this Agreement, and all patent rights, copyrights, trade secret rights and other intellectual property rights relating thereto (collectively "the Intellectual Property"). CONTRACTOR hereby assigns and transfers all rights in the Intellectual Property to COUNTY. CONTRACTOR further agrees to execute and deliver such assignments and other documents as COUNTY may later require to perfect, maintain and enforce COUNTY'S rights as sole owner of the Intellectual property, including all rights under patent and copyright law.

ARTICLE 9. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

A. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:

1. COUNTY shall have the right, by written notice to CONTRACTOR, to terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, for failure to substantially comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, to include:

- a. Failure to provide Services that comply with the specifications herein or that fail to meet COUNTY'S performance standards;
- b. Failure to perform the Services within the time specified in this Agreement; or
- c. Work that is at a rate that disrupts the overall performance of this Agreement.
- 2. Prior to termination for default, COUNTY shall provide adequate written notice to CONTRACTOR, affording CONTRACTOR the opportunity to cure the deficiencies or to submit a specific plan to resolve the deficiencies within ten (10) days (or the period specified in the notice) after receipt of the notice. Failure to adequately cure the deficiency shall result in termination action.
- 3. Such termination may also result in suspension or debarment of CONTRACTOR in accordance with Manatee County's Procurement Ordinance, Chapter 2-26. CONTRACTOR shall be liable for any damage to COUNTY resulting from CONTRACTOR'S default of the Agreement.
- 4. In the event of termination of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall be liable for any damage to COUNTY resulting from CONTRACTOR'S default of this Agreement. This liability includes any increased costs incurred by COUNTY in completing performance under this Agreement.
- 5. In the event of termination by COUNTY for any cause, CONTRACTOR shall not have any right or claim against COUNTY for lost profits or compensation for lost opportunities. After a receipt of COUNTY'S Notice of Termination and except as otherwise directed by COUNTY, CONTRACTOR shall:
 - a. Stop the Services on the date and to the extent specified;
 - b. Terminate and settle all orders and subcontracts relating to the performance of the terminated Services:
 - c. Transfer all work in process, completed work, and other materials related to the terminated Services as directed by COUNTY; and
 - d. Continue and complete all parts of the Services that have not been terminated.

B. TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE:

COUNTY may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, without cause. COUNTY shall provide CONTRACTOR a written "Notice of Intent to Terminate" thirty (30) days prior to the date of termination. If this Agreement is terminated by the COUNTY without cause, CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to payment for all Services performed to the satisfaction of the COUNTY and all expenses incurred under this Agreement prior to termination, less any costs, expenses or damages due to the failure of the CONTRACTOR to properly perform pursuant to this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to any other compensation, including anticipated profits on unperformed Services.

ARTICLE 10. TRANSITION SERVICES UPON TERMINATION

Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall cooperate with COUNTY to assist with the orderly transfer of the Services provided by CONTRACTOR to COUNTY. Prior to termination or expiration of this Agreement, COUNTY may require CONTRACTOR to perform and, if so required, CONTRACTOR shall perform, certain transition services necessary to shift the Services to another provider or to COUNTY itself as described below (the "Transition Services"). The Transition Services may include but shall not be limited to:

- A. Working with COUNTY to jointly develop a mutually agreed upon Transition Services plan to facilitate the termination of the Services;
- B. Executing the Transition Services plan activities;
- C. Answering questions regarding the Services on an as-needed basis; and
- D. Providing such other reasonable Services needed to effectuate an orderly transition to a new service provider or to COUNTY.

ARTICLE 11. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

- A. Disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the Manatee County Purchasing Code (Chapter 2-26 of the Manatee County Code of Ordinances). Any dispute resolution constituting a material change in this Agreement shall not be final until an amendment to this Agreement has been approved and executed by the County Purchasing Official.
- B. CONTRACTOR agrees it must exhaust all dispute resolution procedures set forth in Manatee County's Procurement Code prior to instituting any action in state or federal court or before any administrative agency or tribunal.

ARTICLE 12. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

All Services rendered or performed by CONTRACTOR pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement shall be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws and ordinances. CONTRACTOR shall have and keep current at all times during the term of this Agreement all licenses and permits as required by law.

ARTICLE 13. NON-DISCRIMINATION

CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, sex, creed, national origin, disability or age, and will take affirmative action to ensure that all employees and applicants are afforded equal employment opportunities. Such action will be taken with reference to, but shall not be limited to, recruitment, employment, job assignment, promotion, upgrading, demotion, transfer, layoff or termination, rates of training or retraining (including apprenticeship and on-the-job training).

ARTICLE 14. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS; AUDITS; LICENSES

A. CONTRACTOR shall maintain records, accounts, property records, and personnel records in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, as deemed necessary by COUNTY to assure proper accounting of funds and compliance with the provisions of this Agreement.

- B. CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY all information, reports, records and documents required by this Agreement or by COUNTY ordinances, rules or procedures, or as needed by COUNTY to monitor and evaluate CONTRACTOR'S performance. Such materials shall also be made available to COUNTY upon request for auditing purposes. Inspection or copying will occur during normal business hours, and as often as COUNTY may deem necessary. COUNTY shall have the right to obtain and inspect any audit pertaining to the performance of this Agreement or CONTRACTOR made by any local, state or federal agency. To the extent such materials are in the possession of a third party, CONTRACTOR must obtain them from that third party, or certify in writing to COUNTY why it was unable to do so. CONTRACTOR shall retain all records and supporting documents related to this Agreement in accordance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations, and, at a minimum, retain all records and supporting documents related to this Agreement, except duplicate copies or drafts, for at least three (3) years after the termination date.
- C. CONTRACTOR shall obtain any licenses required to provide the Services and maintain full compliance with any licensure requirements. Copies of reports provided to or by any licensing or regulatory agency shall be forwarded to COUNTY within ten (10) days of receipt by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify COUNTY if the required licenses of any of its principles or agents working on this Agreement are terminated, suspended, revoked or are otherwise invalid and/or are no longer in good standing.

ARTICLE 15. PUBLIC RECORDS

Pursuant to Florida Statutes §119.0701, to the extent CONTRACTOR is performing services on behalf of COUNTY, CONTRACTOR shall:

- A. Keep and maintain public records that would ordinarily be required by COUNTY to perform the service.
- B. Upon request from COUNTY'S custodian of public records, provide COUNTY with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.
- C. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of this Agreement and following completion of this Agreement if CONTRACTOR does not transfer the records to COUNTY.
- D. Upon completion of this Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to COUNTY all public records in possession of CONTRACTOR or keep and maintain public records required by COUNTY to perform the service. If CONTRACTOR transfers all public records to COUNTY upon completion of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall destroy any duplicate public records

that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If CONTRACTOR keeps and maintains public records upon completion of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to COUNTY, upon request from COUNTY'S custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of COUNTY.

IF CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO COUNTY'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT:

Phone: 941.742.5845

Email: lacy.pritchard@mymanatee.org

Mail or hand delivery: Attn: Records Manager 1112 Manatee Avenue West Bradenton, FL 34205

ARTICLE 16. INDEMNIFICATION

- A. Each Party shall defend, indemnify, save and hold harmless the other, its officers, employees and agents, from any and all third-party claims, liabilities, loss, or cause of action for property damage or bodily injury, including death, arising out of any negligent actions or omissions of the indemnifying Party, its agents, officers, employees or agents in the performance of this Agreement, including without limitation, defects in design, or errors or omissions that result in material cost increases to the indemnified Party. Such indemnification shall include, but not be limited to, the payment of all valid claims, losses, and judgements of any nature whatsoever in connection therewith and the payment of all related fees and costs, including attorneys' fees, incurred by the indemnified Party in connection with the indemnifying Party's activities arising out of the performance of this Agreement. This indemnification obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge or reduce any other rights or remedies which otherwise may be available to an indemnified Party or person described in this paragraph or deemed to affect the rights, privileges and immunities of COUNTY as set forth in Section 768.28. Florida Statutes.
- B. CONTRACTOR will indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the COUNTY, its officers, and employees all third-party claims, liabilities, loss, or cause of action that the Services constitutes an infringement of any third-party intellectual property right(s), unless such claim is based on COUNTY'S wrongful or illegitimate use of the Services. The foregoing states the entire liability of CONTRACTOR and the sole and exclusive remedy for COUNTY with respect to any third-party claim of infringement or misappropriation of intellectual property rights. Such indemnification shall include, but not be limited to, the payment of all valid

claims, losses, and judgments of any nature whatsoever in connection therewith and the payment of all related fees and costs, including attorneys' fees.

ARTICLE 17. NO WAIVER OF SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY

Nothing herein shall be interpreted as a waiver by COUNTY of its rights, including the limitations of the waiver of immunity as set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or any other applicable statutes or immunities. COUNTY expressly reserves these rights to the full extent allowed by law.

ARTICLE 18. INSURANCE

- A. CONTRACTOR shall, at its own cost and expense, acquire and maintain (and cause any subcontractors, representatives, or agents to acquire and maintain) insurance policies that comply with the Insurance Requirements, attached as **Exhibit E**, during the term of this Agreement, to include any renewal terms.
- B. Certificates of Insurance and copies of policies evidencing the insurance coverage specified in **Exhibit E** shall be filed with the Purchasing Official before the Effective Date of this Agreement. The required certificates shall identify the type of policy, policy number, date of expiration, amount of coverage, companies affording coverage, shall refer specifically to the title of this Agreement, and shall name Manatee County as an additional insured. No changes shall be made to the insurance coverage without prior written approval by COUNTY'S Risk Management Division.
- C. Insurance shall remain in force for at least three (3) years after completion of the Services in the amounts and types of coverage as required by **Exhibit E**, including coverage for all Services completed under this Agreement.
- D. If the initial insurance expires prior to the termination of this Agreement, renewal Certificates of Insurance and required copies of policies shall be furnished by CONTRACTOR and delivered to the Purchasing Official thirty (30) days prior to the date of their expiration.

ARTICLE 19. SOLICITATION OF AGREEMENT

CONTRACTOR warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person other than a bona fide employee working solely for CONTRACTOR to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person other than an employee working solely for CONTRACTOR, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, contingent fee, or any other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, COUNTY shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability, or at its discretion, to deduct from this Agreement price or consideration or otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts, or contingent fee.

ARTICLE 20. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING

CONTRACTOR shall not assign or transfer any right or duty under this Agreement to any other Party without the prior written consent of COUNTY. In the event CONTRACTOR asserts it is

necessary to utilize the services of third parties to perform any of the Services, CONTRACTOR shall first obtain prior written approval of COUNTY.

Approval to utilize any third party shall not relieve CONTRACTOR from any direct liability or responsibility to COUNTY pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement, or obligate COUNTY to make any payments other than payments due to CONTRACTOR as outlined in this Agreement. All terms and conditions of this Agreement shall extend to and be binding on any approved purchaser, assignee, or other successor in interest.

Assignment, pledging, sale, transfer or encumbering of any interest or rights under this Agreement, to anyone other than the CONTRACTOR, without the prior written consent of the COUNTY, shall be grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 21. CERTIFICATION OF NON-PAYMENT OF COMMISSION OR GIFT

CONTRACTOR warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person other than a bona fide employee working solely for CONTRACTOR to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person other than an employee working solely for CONTRACTOR, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, contingent fee, or any other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, COUNTY shall have the right to annul this Agreement, without liability or at its discretion to deduct from the agreement price consideration or otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts, or contingent fee.

ARTICLE 22. KEY PERSONNEL

The following key personnel shall be the COUNTY primary contacts assigned to this Agreement by CONTRACTOR:

[Enter Name, Title]

CONTRACTOR shall notify the COUNTY in writing within ten (10) business days of any changes to the key personnel.

ARTICLE 23. SUB-CONTRACTORS

If it is determined by either party that a sub-contractor will be required in order to complete the services as described in **Exhibit A**, CONTRACTOR shall request the use of a sub-contractor in writing and receive prior written approval from COUNTY.

ARTICLE 24. LIABILITY FOR NEGLIGENCE.

To the fullest extent allowed by law, the individuals performing the Services pursuant to this Agreement shall be personally liable for negligent acts or omissions. To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR shall likewise be liable for negligent acts or omissions in the performance of the Services.

ARTICLE 25. NOTICES

All notices, requests and authorizations provided for herein shall be in writing and shall be delivered by hand or mailed through the U.S. Mail, addressed as follows:

To COUNTY: Manatee County Government

[Division/Department]

Attn: [Title of Contact person]

[Address] [City/State/Zip]

Phone: (941) [number]

Email: [email]

To CONTRACTOR: [Company Name]

Attn: [Title of Contact person]

[Address] [City/State/Zip]

Phone: ([area code) [number]

Email: [email]

ARTICLE 26. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES

The relationship of CONTRACTOR to COUNTY shall be that of an independent contractor. Nothing herein contained shall be construed as vesting or delegating to CONTRACTOR or any of the officers, employees, personnel, agents, or sub-contractors of CONTRACTOR any rights, interest or status as an employee of COUNTY. COUNTY shall not be liable to any person, firm or corporation that is employed by Agreements or provides goods or services to CONTRACTOR in connection with this Agreement or for debts or claims accruing to such parties. CONTRACTOR shall promptly pay, discharge or take such action as may be necessary and reasonable to settle such debts or claims.

ARTICLE 27. NO CONFLICT

By accepting award of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR, which shall include its directors, officers and employees, represents that it presently has no interest in and shall acquire no interest in any business or activity which would conflict in any manner with the performance of duties or Services required hereunder.

ARTICLE 28. ETHICAL CONSIDERATIONS

CONTRACTOR recognizes that in rendering the Services, CONTRACTOR is working for the residents of Manatee County, Florida, subject to public observation, scrutiny and inquiry; and based upon said recognition CONTRACTOR shall, in all of its relationships with COUNTY pursuant to this Agreement, conduct itself in accordance with all of the recognized applicable ethical standards set by any related national societies, and the reasonable traditions to perform the Services. CONTRACTOR shall be truthful in its communications with COUNTY personnel regarding matters pertaining to this Agreement and the Services rendered to COUNTY.

ARTICLE 29. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

CONTRACTOR has been made aware of the Florida Public Entity Crimes Act, Florida Statutes § 287.133, specifically section 2(a), and COUNTY'S requirement that CONTRACTOR comply with it in all respects prior to and during the term of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 30. TAXES

COUNTY is exempt from Federal Excise and State Sales Taxes (F.E.T. Exemption Certificate No. 59-78-0089K; FL Sales Tax Exemption Certificate No. 51-02-027548-53C). Therefore, CONTRACTOR is prohibited from charging or imposing any sales or service taxes. Nothing herein shall affect CONTRACTOR'S normal tax liability.

CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for payment of federal, state, and local taxes which may be imposed upon CONTRACTOR under applicable law to the extent that CONTRACTOR is responsible for the payment of same under applicable law.

ARTICLE 31. FORCE MAJEURE

Neither Party shall be considered in default in performance of its obligations hereunder to the extent that performance of such obligations or any of them is delayed or prevented by Force Majeure.

Force Majeure shall include, but not be limited to, hostility, revolution, civil commotion, strike, epidemic, accident, fire, flood, wind, earthquake, hurricane, explosion, lack of or failure of transportation facilities, any law, proclamation, regulation, ordinance or other act of government, or any act of God or any cause whether of the same or different nature, existing or future; provided that the cause, whether or not enumerated in this Article, is beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Party seeking relief under this Article.

ARTICLE 32. GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION AND VENUE

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Any action filed regarding this Agreement will be filed only in Manatee County, Florida, or if in Federal Court, the Middle District of Florida, Tampa Division.

ARTICLE 33. ATTORNEY FEES

In the event of any litigation arising under the terms of this Agreement, each Party shall be responsible for their own attorney's fees, including appellate fees, regardless of the outcome of the litigation.

ARTICLE 34. PATENT AND COPYRIGHT RESPONSIBILITY

Any material or design specified by CONTRACTOR or supplied by CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement shall not knowingly infringe any patent or copyright, and CONTRACTOR shall be solely responsible for securing any necessary licenses required for patented or copyrighted material utilized by CONTRACTOR in the performance of the Services.

ARTICLE 35. AMENDMENTS

This Agreement and Exhibits referenced herein constitute the entire Agreement between the Parties with respect to subject matter and mutually agree that no verbal agreements, representations, warranties or other understandings affecting the same exist. No amendment hereof shall be effective until and unless reduced to writing and executed by the Parties. The Parties shall execute any additional documents as may be necessary to implement and carry out the intent of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 36. SEVERABILITY

It is understood and agreed by the Parties hereto that if any part, term, or provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining portions or provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the Parties shall be construed and enforced as if this Agreement did not contain the particular part, term or provision held to be invalid.

ARTICLE 37. LEGAL REFERENCES

All references to statutory sections or chapters shall be construed to include subsequent amendments to such provisions, and to refer to the successor provision of any such provision. References to "applicable law" and "general law" shall be construed to include provisions of local, state and federal law, whether established by legislative action, administrative rule or regulation, or judicial decision.

ARTICLE 38. HEADINGS, CONSTRUCTION

The Parties agree that they have each participated in the drafting of this Agreement and that the rules with respect to construing ambiguities against the drafter of a contract shall not apply in any action or litigation regarding this Agreement. All articles and descriptive headings of paragraphs of this Agreement are inserted for convenience only and shall not affect the construction or interpretation hereof.

ARTICLE 39. TIME

For purposes of computing any period of number of days hereunder for notices or performance of ten (10) days or less, Saturdays, Sundays and holidays shall be excluded, unless otherwise stated.

ARTICLE 40. E-VERIFY

The CONTRACTOR, and any subcontractor thereof, shall register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all new employees of the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor. The CONTRACTOR hereby represents and warrants that it has, and shall remain throughout the duration of this Agreement, registered with, and uses and shall continue to use, the E-Verify system. The CONTRACTOR shall not enter into any contract with a subcontractor for services hereunder unless such subcontractor also has registered with and uses the E-Verify system. If the CONTRACTOR enters into a contract with a subcontractor, the subcontractor shall provide the CONTRACTOR with an affidavit stating that the subcontractor does not

employ, contract with, or subcontract with an unauthorized alien. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain a copy of such affidavit for the duration of this Agreement.

Pursuant to Section 488.095(5)(c)3, Florida Statutes, the COUNTY is authorized to terminate this Agreement if it has a good faith belief that the CONTRACTOR has knowingly violated Section 448.09(1), Florida Statutes, regarding the employment of someone not authorized to work by the immigration laws of the United States, the U.S. Attorney General, or the Secretary of the Department of Homeland Security. Such termination action is not considered a breach of contract.

ARTICLE 41. FUNDS FOR IDENTIFICATION DOCUMENTS

No funds provided by the COUNTY pursuant to this Agreement shall be used for the purpose of issuing an identification card or document to an individual who does not provide proof of lawful presence in the United States.

ARTICLE 42. ANTI-HUMAN TRAFFICKING

CONTRACTOR shall provide County with a sworn affidavit signed by an officer or a representative of CONTRACTOR under penalty of perjury attesting that CONTRACTOR does not use coercion for labor or services, as such terms are defined in Section 787.06, Florida Statutes.

ARTICLE 43. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE

Each of the Parties hereto covenants to the other Party that it has lawful authority to enter into this Agreement.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed effective as of the date set forth above.

CONTRACTOR NAME	
By:	
Printed Name:	
Title:	
Date:	
MANATEE COUNTY, a political sub- of the State of Florida	division
Jacob Erickson, MBA, CPPO, NIGP-CP Purchasing Official Date:	P

EXHIBIT A, SCOPE OF SERVICES



EXHIBIT B, FEE RATE SCHEDULE

1. FEES

Fees for the goods and services detailed in this Agreement shall be as indicated in this **Exhibit B**.

2. ESCALATION/DE-ESCALATION

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]



EXHIBIT C, AFFIDAVIT OF NO CONFLICT

STATE OFCOUNTY OF	
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, this day personally appeared [INS	SERT NAMEI
[INSERT CONTRACTOR NAME]	, (hereinafter
"CONTRACTOR") with full authority to bind CONTRACTOR, who be	
deposes and says that CONTRACTOR:	
(a) Is not currently engaged and will not become engaged in any obligation contracts that will require CONTRACTOR to maintain an adversarial role that will impair or influence the advice, recommendations or quality of County; and	against the County or
(b) Has provided full disclosure of all potentially conflicting contractual disclosure of contractual relationships deemed to raise a question of co	
(c) Has provided full disclosure of prior work history and qualification to raise a possible question of conflict(s).	ns that may be deemed
Affiant makes this Affidavit for the purpose of inducing Manatee County,	a political subdivision
of the State of Florida, to enter into this Agreement Nofo	or
DATED this day of	
CONTRACTOR Signature	
The foregoing instrument was sworn to and acknowledged before me this _	
, 20, by [NAME]	
of [CONTRACTOR]	
personally known to me or has produced [TVDE OF IDENTIFICATION] and identification.	
[TYPE OF IDENTIFICATION] as identification.	
Notary Signature Commission No.	

Please return this completed and signed exhibit with your agreement.

EXHIBIT D, ANTI-HUMAN TRAFFICKING AFFIDAVIT

(Section 787.06, Florida Statutes)

	Before me, the undersigned author	ority, personally appeared	·
who v	was sworn and says that the following	ng information is true and correct	et:
1.	My name isauthorized by the Company to pro		I have been
2.	I am over eighteen years of age personal knowledge.	and the following information	is given from my own
3.	Company is a nongovernmental coercion for labor or services as de-		
4.	This affidavit is made and given to of applicable Florida laws regard resulting from false statements and	ding sworn affidavits and the	
Signa	ture		
STAT	ГЕ ОБ		
	NTY OF		
	n to (or affirmed) and subscribed be ization		-
this _	day of	, 2024, by	, who
	is personally known to me or	as id	
	has produced	as ru	enuncation.
	CCK APPLICABLE BOXES TO FION 117.05, FLORIDA STATUTE		REQUIREMENT OF
<u>a.</u>	(N	My Commission Expires: _	
_	ture of Notary Public bly print, type, or stamp commission	ned name of Notary Public and	affix official notary seal
below		ned name of riotaly rubile and	ama ometai notary sear

Please return this completed and signed exhibit with your agreement

EXHIBIT E, INSURANCE AND BOND REQUIREMENTS

The CONTRACTOR will not commence work under the resulting Agreement until all insurance coverages indicated by an "X" herein have been obtained. The CONTRACTOR shall obtain and submit to the Procurement Division within ten (10) calendar days from the date of notice of intent to award, at its expense, the following minimum amounts of insurance (inclusive of any amounts provided by an umbrella or excess policy): Work under this Agreement cannot commence until all insurance coverages indicated herein have been obtained on a standard ACORD form (inclusive of any amounts provided by an umbrella or excess policy):

Automobile Liability Insurance Required Limits

Coverage must be afforded under a per occurrence policy form including coverage for all owned, hired and non-owned vehicles for bodily injury and property damage of not less than:

- \$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit; OR
- \$500,000 Bodily Injury and \$500,000 Property Damage
- \$10,000 Personal Injury Protection (No Fault)
- \$500,000 Hired, Non-Owned Liability
- \$10,000 Medical Payments

This policy shall contain severability of interests' provisions.

☐ Commercial General Liability Insurance Required Limits (per Occurrence form only; claims-made form is not acceptable)

Coverage shall be afforded under a per occurrence policy form, policy shall be endorsed and name 'Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida' as an Additional Insured, and include limits not less than:

- \$1,000,000 Single Limit Per Occurrence
- \$2,000,000 Aggregate
- \$1,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate
- \$1,000,000 Personal and Advertising Injury Liability
- \$50,000 Fire Damage Liability
- \$10,000 Medical Expense, and
- \$1,000,000, Third Party Property Damage
- \$ Project Specific Aggregate (Required on projects valued at over \$10,000,000)

This policy shall contain severability of interests' provisions.

Employer's Liability Insurance

Coverage limits of not less than:

- \$100,000 Each Accident
- \$500,000 Disease Each Employee
- \$100,000 Disease Policy Limit

⊠ Worker's Compensation Insurance
☐ US Longshoremen & Harbor Workers Act☐ Jones Act Coverage
Coverage limits of not less than:
 Statutory workers' compensation coverage shall apply for all employees in compliance with the laws and statutes of the State of Florida and the federal government. If any operations are to be undertaken on or about navigable waters, coverage must be included for the US Longshoremen & Harbor Workers Act and Jones Act.
Should 'leased employees' be retained for any part of the project or service, the employee leasing agency shall provide evidence of Workers' Compensation coverage and Employer's Liability coverage for all personnel on the worksite and in compliance with the above Workers' Compensation requirements. NOTE: Workers' Compensation coverage is a firm requirement. Elective exemptions are considered on a case-by-case basis and are approved in a very limited number of instances.
Aircraft Liability Insurance Required Limits Coverage shall be afforded under a per occurrence policy form, policy shall be endorsed and name 'Manatee County a political subdivision of the State of Florida' as an Additional Insured, and include limits not less than:
 \$ Each Occurrence Property and Bodily Injury with no less than \$100,000 per passenger each occurrence or a 'smooth' limit. \$ General Aggregate.
 ☐ Un-Manned Aircraft Liability Insurance (Drone) Coverage shall be afforded under a per occurrence policy form, policy shall be endorsed and name 'Manatee County a political subdivision of the State of Florida' as an Additional Insured, and include limits not less than: ◆ \$ Each Occurrence Property and Bodily Injury; Coverage shall specifically include operation of Unmanned Aircraft Systems (UAS), including liability and property damage. ◆ \$ General Aggregate
Installation Floater Insurance When the contract or agreement does not include construction of, or additions to, above ground building or structures, but does involve the installation of machinery or equipment, Installation Floater Insurance shall be afforded under a per occurrence policy form, policy shall be endorsed and name "Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida" as an Additional

• 100% of the completed value of such addition(s), building(s), or structure(s)

Insured, and include limits not less than:

Professional Liability and/or Errors and Omissions (E&O) Liability Insurances Coverage shall be afforded under either an occurrence policy form or a claims-made policy form. If the coverage form is on a claims-made basis, then coverage must be maintained for a minimum of three years from termination of date of the contract. Limits must not be less than:

- \$ 1,000,000 Bodily Injury and Property Damage Each Occurrence
- \$2,000,000 General Aggregate

Builder's Risk Insurance

When the contract or agreement includes the construction of roadways and/or the addition of a permanent structure or building, including the installation of machinery and/or equipment, Builder's Risk Insurance shall be afforded under a per occurrence policy form, policy shall be endorsed and name "Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida" as an Additional Insured, and include limits not less than:

- An amount equal to 100% of the completed value of the project, or the value of the equipment to be installed
- The policy shall not carry a self-insured retention/deductible greater than \$10,000

Coverage shall be for all risks and include, but not be limited to, storage and transport of materials, equipment, supplies of any kind whatsoever to be used on or incidental to the project, theft coverage, and Waiver of Occupancy Clause Endorsement, where applicable.

Cyber Liability Insurance

Coverage shall comply with Florida Statute 501.171, shall be afforded under a per occurrence policy form, policy shall be endorsed and name 'Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida' as an Additional Insured, and include limits not less than:

- \$ Security Breach Liability
- \$ Security Breach Expense Each Occurrence
- \$ Security Breach Expense Aggregate
- \$ Replacement or Restoration of Electronic Data
- \$ Extortion Threats
- \$ Business Income and Extra Expense
- \$ Public Relations Expense

NOTE: Policy must not carry a self-insured retention/deductible greater than \$25,000.

☐ Hazardous Materials Insurance (As Noted Below)

Hazardous materials include all materials and substances that are currently designated or defined as hazardous by the law or rules of regulation by the State of Florida or federal government. All coverage shall be afforded under either an occurrence policy form or a claims-made policy form, and the policy shall be endorsed and name 'Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida' as an Additional Insured. If the coverage form is on a claims-made basis, then

coverage must be maintained for a minimum of three years from termination of date of the contract. Limits must not be less than:
☐ <i>Pollution Liability</i> Amount equal to the value of the contract, subject to a \$1,000,000 minimum, for Bodily Injury and Property Damage to include sudden and gradual release, each claim and aggregate.
Asbestos Liability (If handling within scope of Contract) Amount equal to the value of the contract, subject to a \$1,000,000 minimum, for Bodily Injury and Property Damage to include sudden and gradual release, each claim and aggregate.
☐ <i>Disposal</i> When applicable, CONTRACTOR shall designate the disposal site and furnish a Certificate of Insurance from the disposal facility for Environmental Impairment Liability Insurance covering liability.
 Amount equal to the value of the contract, subject to a \$1,000,000 minimum, for Liability for Sudden and Accidental Occurrences, each claim and an aggregate. Amount equal to the value of the contract, subject to a \$1,000,000 minimum, for Liability for Non-Sudden and Accidental Occurrences, each claim and an aggregate.
Hazardous Waste Transportation Insurance CONTRACTOR shall designate the hauler and have the hauler furnish a Certificate of Insurance for Automobile Liability insurance with Endorsement MCS-90 for liability arising out of the transportation of hazardous materials. EPA identification number shall be provided.
All coverage shall be afforded under either an occurrence policy form or a claims-made policy form and the policy shall be endorsed and name "Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida" as an Additional Insured. If the coverage form is on a claims-made basis, then coverage must be maintained for a minimum of three years from termination of date of the contract. Limits must not be less than:
 Amount equal to the value of the contract, subject to a \$1,000,000 minimum, per accident.
Liquor Liability Insurance Coverage shall be afforded under a per occurrence policy form, policy shall be endorsed and name "Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida" as an Additional Insured, and include limits not less than:
• \$1,000,000 Each Occurrence and Aggregate
☐ Garage Keeper's Liability Insurance Coverage shall be required if the maintenance, servicing, cleaning or repairing of any County motor vehicles is inherent or implied within the provision of the contract.

Coverage shall be afforded under a per occurrence policy form, policy shall be endorsed and name "Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida" as an Additional Insured, and include limits not less than:

• Property and asset coverage in the full replacement value of the lot or garage.

☐ Bailee's Customer Liability Insurance

Coverage shall be required for damage and/or destruction when County property is temporarily under the care or custody of a person or organization, including property that is on, or in transit to and from the person or organization's premises. Perils covered should include fire, lightning, theft, burglary, robbery, explosion, collision, flood, earthquake and damage or destruction during transportation by a carrier.

Coverage shall be afforded under a per occurrence policy form, policy shall be endorsed and name "Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida" as an Additional Insured, and include limits not less than:

 Property and asset coverage in the full replacement value of the County asset(s) in the CONTRACTOR'S care, custody and control.

☐ Hull and Watercraft Liability Insurance

Coverage shall be afforded under a per occurrence policy form, policy shall be endorsed and name "Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida" as an Additional Insured, and include limits not less than:

- \$ Each Occurrence
- \$ General Aggregate
- \$ Fire Damage Liability
- \$10,000 Medical Expense, and
- \$ Third Party Property Damage
- Project Specific Aggregate (Required on projects valued at over \$10,000,000)

Other [Specify]			
REQUIRED BONDS			
☐ Bid Bond			
A Bid Bond in the amount of \$	or	% of the total offer.	Bid bond shall be submitted
with the sealed response and shall income	clude pr	oject name, location,	and / or address and projec
number. In lieu of the bond, the bidde	r may fi	ile an alternative form	of security in the amount of
\$ or% of the total offer. i	n the fo	rm of a money order,	a certified check, a cashier's
check, or an irrevocable letter of credi-	t issued	to Manatee County. N	IOTE: A construction project

Payment and Performance Bond

A Payment and Performance Bond shall be submitted by Successful Bidder for 100% of the

over \$200,000 requires a Bid Bond in the amount of 5% of the total bid offer.

award amount and shall be presented to Manatee County within ten (10) calendar days of issuance of the notice of intent to award. NOTE: A construction project over \$200,000 requires a Payment and Performance Bond.

I. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

THE POLICIES ARE TO CONTAIN, OR BE ENDORSED TO CONTAIN, THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS:

Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages

a. "Manatee County, a Political Subdivision of the State of Florida," is to be named as an Additional Insured in respect to: Liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the CONTRACTOR, his agents, representatives, and employees; products and completed operations of the CONTRACTOR; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the CONTRACTOR. The coverage shall contain no special limitation(s) on the scope of protection afforded to the COUNTY, its officials, employees or volunteers.

In addition to furnishing a Certificate of Insurance, the CONTRACTOR shall provide the endorsement that evidences Manatee COUNTY being listed as an Additional Insured. This can be done in one of two ways: (1) an endorsement can be issued that specifically lists "Manatee County, a Political Subdivision of the State of Florida," as Additional Insured; or, (2) an endorsement can be issued that states that all Certificate Holders are Additional Insured with respect to the policy.

- b. The CONTRACTOR'S insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to the COUNTY, its officials, employees and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the COUNTY, its officials, employees or volunteers shall be excess of CONTRACTOR's insurance and shall be non-contributory.
- c. The insurance policies must be on an occurrence form.

Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability Coverages

The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the COUNTY, its officials, employees and volunteers for losses arising from work performed by the CONTRACTOR for the COUNTY.

II. General Insurance Provisions Applicable To All Policies:

a. Prior to the execution of contract, or issuance of a Purchase Order, and then annually upon the anniversary date(s) of the insurance policy's renewal date(s) for as long as this contract remains in effect, CONTRACTOR shall furnish the COUNTY with a

Certificate(s) of Insurance (using an industry accepted certificate form, signed by the Issuer, with applicable endorsements, and containing the solicitation or contract number, and title or description) evidencing the coverage set forth above and naming "Manatee County, a Political Subdivision of the State of Florida" as an Additional Insured on the applicable coverage(s) set forth above.

b. If the policy contains an aggregate limit, confirmation is needed in writing (letter, email, etc.) that the aggregate limit has not been eroded to procurement representative when supplying Certificate of Insurance.

In addition, when requested in writing from the COUNTY, CONTRACTOR will provide the COUNTY with a certified copy of all applicable policies. The address where such certificates and certified policies shall be sent or delivered is as follows:

Manatee County, a Political Subdivision of the State of Florida Attn: Risk Management Division 1112 Manatee Avenue West, Suite 969 Bradenton, FL 34205

- c. The project's solicitation number and title shall be listed on each certificate.
- d. CONTRACTOR shall provide thirty (30) days written notice to the Risk Manager of any cancellation, non-renewal, termination, material change, or reduction in coverage of any insurance policies to procurement representative including solicitation number and title with all notices.
- e. CONTRACTOR agrees that should at any time CONTRACTOR fail to meet or maintain the required insurance coverage(s) as set forth herein, the COUNTY may terminate this contract.
- f. The CONTRACTOR waives all subrogation rights against COUNTY, a Political Subdivision of the State of Florida, for all losses or damages which occur during the contract and for any events occurring during the contract period, whether the suit is brought during the contract period or not.
- g. The CONTRACTOR has sole responsibility for all insurance premiums and policy deductibles.
- h. It is the CONTRACTOR'S responsibility to ensure that his agents, representatives and subcontractors comply with the insurance requirements set forth herein. CONTRACTOR shall include his agents, representatives, and subcontractors working on the project or at the worksite as insured under its policies, or CONTRACTOR shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each agent, representative, and subcontractor working on the project or at the worksite. All coverages for agents, representatives, and subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements set forth to the procurement representative.

- i. All required insurance policies must be written with a carrier having a minimum A.M. Best rating of A- FSC VII or better. In addition, the COUNTY has the right to review the CONTRACTOR's deductible or self-insured retention and to require that it be reduced or eliminated.
- j. CONTRACTOR understands and agrees that the stipulated limits of coverage listed herein in this insurance section shall not be construed as a limitation of any potential liability to the COUNTY, or to others, and the COUNTY'S failure to request evidence of this insurance coverage shall not be construed as a waiver of CONTRACTOR'S obligation to provide and maintain the insurance coverage specified.
- k. CONTRACTOR understands and agrees that the COUNTY does not waive its immunity and nothing herein shall be interpreted as a waiver of the COUNTY'S rights, including the limitation of waiver of immunity, as set forth in Florida Statutes 768.28, or any other statutes, and the COUNTY expressly reserves these rights to the full extent allowed by law.
- 1. No award shall be made until the Procurement Division has received the Certificate of Insurance in accordance with this section.

III. BONDING REQUIREMENTS

Bid Bond/Certified Check. By submitting a proposal, the CONTRACTOR agrees should its proposal be accepted, to execute the form of Agreement and present the same to COUNTY for approval within ten (10) calendar days after notice of intent to award. The CONTRACTOR further agrees that failure to execute and deliver said form of Agreement within ten (10) calendar days will result in damages to COUNTY and as guarantee of payment of same a bid bond/certified check shall be enclosed within the submitted sealed proposal in the amount of five (5%) percent of the total amount of the proposal. The CONTRACTOR further agrees that in case the CONTRACTOR fails to enter into an Agreement, as prescribed by COUNTY, the bid bond/certified check accompanying the proposal shall be forfeited to COUNTY as agreed liquidated damages. If COUNTY enters into an agreement with a CONTRACTOR, or if COUNTY rejects any and/or all proposals, accompanying bond will be promptly returned.

Payment and Performance Bonds. Prior to commencing work, the CONTRACTOR shall obtain, for the benefit of and directed to COUNTY, a Payment and Performance Bond satisfying the requirements of Section 255.05, Florida Statutes, covering the faithful performance by the CONTRACTOR of its obligation under the Contract Documents, including but not limited to the construction of the project on the project site and the payment and obligations arising thereunder, including all payments to Subcontractors, laborers, and materialmen. The surety selected by the CONTRACTOR to provide the Payment and Performance Bond shall be approved by COUNTY prior to issuance of such Bond, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed provided that surety is rated A- or better by Best's Key Guide, latest edition.

Failure to provide the required bonds on the prescribed form may result in CONTRACTOR being deemed nonresponsive. Bonds must be in the form prescribed in Section 255.05, Florida Statutes, and must not contain notice, demand or other terms and conditions, including **informal** pre-claim meetings, not provided for in Section 255.05, Florida Statutes.

Bonds shall be in an amount equal to 100% of the contract price issued by a duly authorized and nationally recognized surety company, authorized to do business in the State of Florida, satisfactory to COUNTY. Surety shall be rated as "A-" or better by Best's Key Guide, latest edition. The attorney-in-fact who signs the bonds must file with the bonds, a certificate and effective dated copy of power-of-attorney. Payment and Performance Bonds shall be issued to "Manatee County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida", within ten (10) calendar days after issuance of notice of intent to award.

In addition, pursuant to Section 255.05(1)(b), Florida Statutes, prior to commencing work, the CONTRACTOR shall be responsible and bear all costs associated to record the Payment and Performance Bond with the Manatee County Clerk of the Circuit Court. A certified copy of said recording shall be furnished to the Procurement Division upon filing. Pursuant to Section 255.05(1)(b), Florida Statutes, COUNTY will make no payment to the CONTRACTOR until the CONTRACTOR has complied with this paragraph.

Furnishing Payment and Performance Bonds shall be requisite to execution of an Agreement with COUNTY. Said Payment and Performance Bonds will remain in force for the duration of this Agreement with the premiums paid by the CONTRACTOR. Failure of the CONTRACTOR to execute such Agreement and to supply the required bonds shall be just cause for cancellation of the award. COUNTY may then contract with the next lowest, responsive and responsible CONTRACTOR or re-advertise this RFP.

Failure of COUNTY at any time to require performance by the CONTRACTOR of any provisions set out in the resulting Agreement will in no way affect the right of COUNTY, thereafter, to enforce those provisions.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]

CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE STATEMENT

THE UNDERSIGNED has read and understands the aforementioned insurance and bond requirements of this Agreement and shall provide the insurance required by this section within ten (10) days from the date of notice of intent to award.

Date:	
Contractor's Name:	
Authorized Signature:	
Printed Name/Title:	
	X
Insurance Agency:	
Agent Name:	
Agent Phone:	
Surety Agency:	
Surety Name:	
Surety Phone:	

Please return this completed and signed statement with your agreement.